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Quallty Policy for ASL
ARG EE RS

We are dedicated to delivering effective
and efficient IT solution ON TIME through
CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT on our
processes, products and services in order
to achieve:

BB ZEBHEREZEMANRE - EmNR
BUERNRHARSNREZNEARE TR
emEZR:

e Maximum efficiency in operation

e Satisfaction of our customers,
shareholders, business partners and staff
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FORMATION OF ASL QUALITY COUNCIL

BBRAAmEEEE IR

ASL Quality Council is set up to formulate continuous quality improvement strategy and oversee the implementation of the
Quality Management System at the corporate level.
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AUTOMATED SYSTEMS (HK) LTD.
é EJ%\IIJL (§;§) ﬁIZEi\\a

Capability Maturity Model® Integration (CMMI) SSI Around 60 Six Sigma Qreen Belt

Version 1.1 — Maturity Level 3 Rating #BORANARIBEFERT S
Capability Maturity Model Integration (CMMI) 1 Certified Master Black Belt

1AM - E=ZRFR —HNARBRERMERES
150 9001 : 2000 150 9001 : 2000

Cortificate No.: CC 1505 Cortificate No.: CC 1675

| . . ®CMMI is registered in the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office
Infrastructure and Enterprise Business . . .
Managed Services Solutions Division by Carnegie Mellon University
R BREEBENARERE A R
Division D CMMI I RREXEARBRERENEEREMZEE
AABRERR
HRERRB

ELM COMPUTER TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
FMAEREMEFRA A

Provision of information Computer Information System Integration
technology system integration, (SI) Qualification Certification

software development, - Level 3 Qualification

installation and maintenance

support services ‘ (GHEREESRREXNEERE)
REEABBERGER M _EmomaE

I RREEERRY

This certificate was granted by the Ministry of
Information Industry of the PRC Government
hREHPRBGEEEEBRES
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Financial Calendar

RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT
REDH

First quarter
E-FF

Interim

-

Third quarter
F=FF

Annual

€S

DIVIDEND
=\

28th August, 2007
—2E2LFN\A-+NE

5th November, 2007
—Z2Z+F+—AAA

3rd March, 2008
—TENF=R=H

27th June, 2008
ZEENFAAZTLA

Interim dividend payment (4.0 HK cents per share)
R S (B RR4.0%10)

Proposed final dividend payment (6.0 HK cents per share)
BIEARERE (BAR6.0/L)

Proposed special dividend payment (11.0 HK cents per share)

BOR ' RIBR (811,08 10)

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
EEMEROBFER

2nd January, 2008
—EENF-HZ=H

10th September, 2008
—EENFNATH

10th September, 2008
—EENFENATH

25th August, 2008 to 27th August, 2008
—EENFNAZ+RBE=ZEZNFNA=+LtH

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
BREFAE

27th August, 2008
TN NFNA=++tH

Annual Report 2008 5 §§
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Financial Summary [

RESULTS
E 45
Year ended 31st March,
HEZ=A=+-HLEE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EENE —ET LR ZTTRF ZTTRF —ETMF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT FAT FAET FAT
Turnover B 1,393,393 1,274,979 1,104,239 955,980 963,966
Profit before taxation B B A1 4 A 89,275 61,837 54,652 39,470 21,482
Taxation BiIE (13,122) (8,277) (10,173) (5,891) (1,138)
Profit for the year 2FHF 76,153 53,560 44,479 33,579 20,344
Attributable to: THALES:
Equity holders of the Company A RIBRAEHHF A 76,153 58,560 44 479 33,206 18,184
Minority interests LSRR IEL - = = 373 2,160
Profit for the year 2EHF 76,153 53,560 44,479 33,579 20,344

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EEREE
As at 31st March,
R=HA=+-—H

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
“EENE —ETtF —EEREF —ZETRF —ZT A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET FAT FAET FAT
Total assets BEE 994,995 892,453 786,349 784,740 773,207
Total liabilities BmEE (426,874) (368,498) (299,535) (317,295) (317,847)
568,121 523,955 486,814 467,445 455,360

Equity attributable to equity ARIBRAEAF A
holders of the Company MR A 568,121 523,955 486,814 467,445 448,447
Minority interests LSRR ER - = = = 6,913
568,121 523,955 486,814 467,445 455,360

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
HBRASEEERLT
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| Chairman’s Statement

Allen Joseph PATHMARAJAH =
S ——— This has been a great year for our Group,

as we marked our 11th consecutive year

of profitability since listing.
AEBRAFEREEZE B LmURER
ET—F®%BER-

Annual Report 2008 5 §§
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Chairman’s Statement

The profit for the year before taxation improved to HK$89.3 million.

X E KRB A% R N £89,300,0005E T ©

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the
annual report of Automated Systems Holdings Limited (“ASL”" or “The
Group”) for the financial year ended 31st March, 2008.

This has been a great year for our Group, as we marked our 11th
consecutive year of profitability since listing. The Group’s turnover
increased by 9.3% to HK$1,393.3 million. The profit for the year
before taxation improved to HK$89.3 million, an increase of 44.4%
over last year — the substantial increase was mainly due to the gain of
HK$20.7 million from the disposal of available-for-sale investments,
partially offset by a special bonus of approximately HK$5.0 million for
all supporting staff to retain and reward talent. Excluding such factors,
the profit before taxation amounted to HK$73.6 million, an increase of
19.0% compared with last year. Basic earmnings per share was 25.76
HK cents compared with 18.21 HK cents last year.

The Group’s financial position continued to be strong and the net
cash balance at the end of the year was HK$398.7 million. This
provides a solid foundation for our sustainable growth in the future.
We will continue to evaluate prudent options to improve the return on
these funds.

As an appreciation to our shareholders for their continued support,
the Board of Directors has recommended a final dividend of 6.0 HK
cents per share and a special dividend of 11.0 HK cents per share. It
is the 4th consecutive year which the Board of Directors recommends
payment of special dividend. Together with the interim dividend of 4.0
HK cents per share distributed to shareholders, the total dividends for
the year would be 21.0 HK cents per share.

+44.4%

Profit before taxation B 4 Bl ﬂﬁﬂ

RAAMAKRREFSEREDAREEBRA A
(TEBEGI R AEE]) BE_ZTNF=A=
T—RILEMBRFEEZFHR

REERAFEEFSM 8 EHUREES +—
FHREARMN AEBZE ¥R EFI3%E
1,398,300,0007% 7t * A FF & B B Al & F3E fn 2
89,300,000 7T BRAF EFH44.4% o FEBRT AR
MABENETERHRENEITHEEREZ
20,700,000 Tz AT B A BB M s IR 4 T PR
BIRETIE 2 B T 495,000,000/ TLiF BITEALE 5
e FEABEREEAS MR BBEE BRBIA
& M /73,600,000 70 A F EF19.0% - BRE
RBF B2 76 XFRIA18.2138 M-

REEZHBAMRERRRE RERZFREEH
/398,700,000 T  RARE Z RRFBELRE
EERBEAR AEEBEBETHEEZ X KK
RALEES ZER-

REREZHESH E2E2BRNTRERE
FRe.0BIMERFAIREGRI.0BIL - ESEEE
BENFEIREFAIRE - ERDKTREZSP
HREGRAOEI 2FEREE RER21.08
filie

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
HBRASEEERLT
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Strengthening staff capability

to enhance our
competitiveness and service quality

IHAB IR nwsrems
BRI RRFEE

Annual Report 2008 5 §§




We have continued to focus on providing world-class services to our
clients through further improving the technical competence of our staff
to achieve internationally recognised standards such as International
Organisation for Standardisation (1ISO”), Capability Maturity Model
Integration (“CMMI"), Six Sigma and ISO/International Electrotechnical
Commission (‘IEC”) 20000 Standard (ITIL). Furthermore, we have
extended our businesses and services to the neighbouring countries,

including the Greater China.

We celebrated the 10th anniversary of ASL’s listing on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. This was a significant milestone for
us to continue to strive to enhance our position as a leading regional
Information Technology (“IT") group, providing reliable and quality

services.

The Group was honoured by several prestigious international awards
which included the Blue Coat Achievement Award 2007, the Check
Point Best Growth Gold Partner Year 2007 and 2007 EMC Greater
China Enterprise Partner of the Year from EMC. In addition, we have
won for the 2nd consecutive year the Best Small-Cap Company
Award in the annual poll of Asia’s Best Companies (Hong Kong
District) organised by FinanceAsia.

To further advance the customers’ business in the IT driven world, we
worked closely with our business partners to organise a series of
marketing events, including seminars, workshops, exhibitions and
luncheon to promote the latest IT solutions and our services. We
participated for the 4th consecutive year in the EMC Solution Forum
2007 to showcase effective information protection solution. We held
the “Connecting Your Regional Operation Effectively for Business
Success” seminar to discuss effective data sharing with overseas
offices for cost efficiency and business development. Furthermore,
ELM Computer Technologies Limited, one of our subsidiaries, and
IBM jointly organised a seminar on asset management for local
enterprises to enhance operational efficiency.

TREWE

Chairman’s Statement

REBEBBE—SREET 2RI UFEEEE
A L4 4 ([1SOJ ) ~ Capability Maturity Model
Integration ([CMMI ) ~ 7S P18 35 R ISO/BIBR & T &
B& ([IEC]) 20000 (ITIL) % Rl %5 B BR 3R Al 12 25 -
THBNARFPIREA T RBKFE ZRE 1IN
AEECHEEERRRBEMOIER BERHR
3 [ o

AEEENBYRPINERBERIMERRA
EHIOAF - RAEENEZBIZME REHK
BEBNIRALTEEREANEANRERT 2R
T URREAIEREEZ R -

7N 55 [ 50 % (IR B B 40 % 22 7H - R B #EBlue Coat
Achievement Award 2007 ~ Check Point Best Growth
Gold Partner Year 2007 &k EMC# £ .2 2007 EMC
APERPEZEFE R YL REEN(EME
BOMSEPNTMNRELAR (FER) FEESR
FEEMFESRE DR SEELIA

RE-THRETPREMMERROEBER &
SEEEXBBHETAE B - RIMEHE
AP BREMNE THED RERFTES Mk
EEHHz BABBRBANRRAEEZ R K&
EEEBEMNFR2EEMC FRBE UWETBRZ
BARERATR-NEERHR [ LRER EBR
Bl e MmN AARREIMNIEREDF
BUBLARE R AR BRER UL NEEEE P —
B AR MM ERB R ER A BBIABVERE
EEBHNE UEARMEEZ BBRE-

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
HBRASEEERLT
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Chairman’s Statement

Human resource is one of our most important assets for maintaining
our competitive edge. Staff development and quality improvement
remain our primary focus. We continued to invest in human capital to
enhance our customer service excellence. We conducted staff
training programs in the areas of sales, business development,
services and management skills, including IT outsourcing, ITIL, Six
Sigma Green Belt, etc. We further enhanced the training programs by
organising Knowledge Management (KM) workshops to nurture a
professional information management team which helped implement
KM projects. We continue to strive to strengthen our staff capability
through leveraging the Group’s training center and allocating more
resources to enhance our competitiveness and the quality of our

services.

Our staff participated in the first ICT Sports and Fun Day. The event
provided a valuable opportunity for them to meet the staff of other IT
industry players to enhance collaboration and celebrate the Beljing
Olympics.

We continued to place greater emphasis on Corporate Governance
standard and practice. As stated last year, we are in full compliance
with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, except that non-executive directors
are not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by

rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

Last year, | stated that our controlling shareholder, Computer

Sciences Corporation (“CSC") was considering various alternatives
regarding its investment in ASL, including possible disposal of their
interest in the company. In October 2007, we announced that CSC

was no longer pursuing this option.
During the year, Mr. George Finlay Bell resigned from the Board of

Directors. | wish to thank him for his valuable contribution. | welcome

Mr. Michael Shove who was appointed in his place.

Annual Report 2008 F $§
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Chairman’s Statement

The Group’s financial position continued to be strong and the net
cash balance at the end of the year was HK$398.7 million.

AEBzHBURRERFRE RFL 2FRE 46 5398,700,000/ 7T °

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | thank the management and staff
for their commitment and significant contribution in achieving our great
results. | also take this opportunity to thank our valued clients,
business partners and shareholders for their continued support.

In conclusion, | thank my fellow directors for their whole-hearted
cooperation, support and valuable contribution.

Allen Joseph PATHMARAJAH
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th June, 2008

FANERRESE HEEERET AEEESUE
BEEMNL 2B N RERXEREH AATB U
RERBZEEEF XBEHRBRZFEAX
o

Bl AABHETREZ ROAE LRRER
& -

Allen Joseph PATHMARAJAH
EH

EE _ETN\FRA-TLEHR

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Managing Director’'s Statement

We continue to maintain Hong Kong as

a centre of excellence, and expand
within the regional market with a focus
mainly on Greater China.
AEBEBEUEERERERPL INE
NEREZB LHERAPEHENFRK-
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Managing Director’s Statement

Turnover for FY08 was HK$1,393.3 million.
—EFN\HMEFEE X A1,393,300,000/E T o

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Financial Results

Turnover for FYO8 was HK$1,393.3 million, and was higher by
HK$118.4 million or 9.3% compared to FYO7. Turnover for the fourth
quarter was HK$398.7 million; higher by HK$11.3 million or 2.9%
compared to the corresponding period last year. Annual product sales
and service revenue increased by 4.9% and 17.9% respectively
against FY07's numbers to HK$888.5 million and HK$504.9 million,
and they contributed 63.8% and 36.2% to turnover respectively.
Commercial and public sector sales for the full year contributed
55.6% and 44.4% to turnover respectively compared to 53.2% and
46.8% last year.

Profit before taxation for FYO8 was HK$89.3 million, showing an
increase of HK$27.4 million or 44.4% year on year. During the year, a
gain of HK$20.7 million was recorded by the Group from the disposal
of available-for-sale investments, and the Group provided a special
bonus of approximately HK$5.0 million for all supporting staff with a
view to retaining and rewarding talents. Excluding such factors, the
profit before taxation amounted to HK$73.6 million representing an
increase of 19.0% as compared to FYO7. Profit before taxation for the
fourth quarter was HK$28.4 million, increase HK$1.9 million
compared to the same period last year. Overall growth this year can
mainly be credited to a number of contributing factors. There was a
satisfactory growth in service business which has continued to earn
steady and stable revenue while the infrastructure business sustained
its performance in the past year through materialising a number of
multi-million dollar projects.

As of the 31st of March 2008, the order book balance was
approximately HK$550.0 million, indicating a year on year increase of
10.0%. The Group recorded net cash of approximately HK$398.7
million, showing an increase of HK$55.6 million. The increase in cash
flow was primarily due to sale proceeds from the disposal of
available-for-sale investments and collection from significant projects
that were closed and completed in the fourth quarter. The Group'’s
balance sheet was healthy, there were no debts during this period,
and working capital ratio stood at 1.9:1.

+9.3%

Turnover & % %8

EEENWR DN

g

ZET BB FEE T R1,393,300,000%8 7T
R KFE L F 118,400,000 T
3,0.3% ° B IZEE 2 & %% /398,700,000 7T *
B FEE EF11,800,0008 T 2.9% & F
ERHEEBELLRERKZAEL ST LH K
FEEH R EF4.9%K17.9%% 888,500,000 7T &
504,900,000/ 7t 7 Bl & & ¥ %8 5§l 63.8% &
362%  MERDREWREBEZ22FHETEIANA
BB EBS5.6%K44.4% T EFH B53.2% %
46.8 %

ZET N\ ERFE 2 KRB A& R £89,300,000/%
TLREE R 27,400,000/ 708k44.4% © TR AE
B g & A B A 8115 &5 20,700,000/ T -
MABEREBAL REETMMERESIEZ
8 T 2 U BIFEAT 495,000,000/ Tt » i b 3% &5 &
=% BB ADEFR A73,600,0008 T B2+
HHRFEEEF19.0% - ENEE BB AN F A
28,400,000 7T, * 8 2 4F [& B /i 1,900,000 7t
AEECEBERFIEZERIRETERBEZ -RH
E¥BDBRE 2GR EERIFEEBORES
BEBNEEELF 2R BRTZABEREAE
JTTZ2IEE -

RZZZN\F=ZA=+—H8 FHEIEHRENA
550,000,000 ¢ BHZ F 1B R 10.0% ° NE&EE IS
IR & % 58 49398,700,0005% 7T * 1 H155,600,0005%
T ReRENEEANEHEATHEEREZIHE
FERBERERENEERK AR T 2EKXNER
Bz B AEEEEABRER HATE
FREE EEEARLER1O -
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Business Review

Services business

The Group continued to see a stable stream of growth and
development in the service business mainly derived from recurring
revenue stemming from orders for maintenance services, managed
services, and high-value professional services. The increasing
demand for service business has enabled the Group to maintain a
higher profit margin business.

Following the commencement of the Quality Professional Services
(QPS) arrangement with the HKSAR Government in December 2005,
the Group continued to be awarded a number of sizable Standing
Offer Agreements (SOAs) from various government departments in the
year under review. These agreements comprised a broad range of
Information Technology Professional Services that included the
provision of system analysis & design, system implementation &
integration, and system maintenance & support of a booking system,
and full system development lifecycle services for an asset
management system. The vast number of SOA-QPS projects showed
ASL ability and experience in handling large-scale projects.

Within the banking and finance sector, the Group’s range of SWIFT
services continued to contribute to the recurring income base for the
year. The growth was largely due to the SWIFTNet Phase 2 migration
and the replacement of the Real-Time Gross Settlement (RTGS) with
the new SWIFTNet-based messaging platform. Having been
accredited as a SWIFT Service Partner in Hong Kong since 2002,
ASL has provided SWIFT services for more than 85 financial
institutions in Hong Kong and 10 financial institutions in overseas to
date. The Group foresees a continual demand for upgrade and
integration services in the future and will maintain focus on developing
opportunities to develop and expand SWIFT business outside Hong
Kong. The Group’s managed services also contributed to growth by
securing a multi-million dollar project from an aviation related
organisation to provide onsite analyst programmers.

IT Infrastructure business

The IT infrastructure business performed well during the year under
review as there continued to be strong public and private sector
demand for new infrastructure system and enhancement to improve
operational efficiency and customer service. During the year, the
Group won a number of sizable infrastructure deals including a 48-
month contract with a government related organisation for the supply,
installation and maintenance of Internet Infrastructure and Network
Security Systems. The most notable project on the commercial side
was a multi-million dollar contract to provide approximately 60 units of
Sun servers and enterprise software products to a well-regarded
financial organisation. Following the previous quarter, the Group
secured another order from an international bank to expand their data
center as well as a contract to provide servers, storage and
networking products to facilitate data center consolidation for a
leading electronics manufacturing services provider.

EFRRLERE
Managing Director’s Statement

KB OE

R ET
AEEZRBEGRERSRE 2L RD B RE
B-XEREMAERT BXEERBLSEES
ERBZEAEMRETE-RBEEB 2T R LT
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EAKBEEFEERRBERAFIZBEEAMESE
ERBQOPOR—_ZEZERF T - ARER FT&HE
REBEFEANEEEZEARFHRFIRLZEER
ERHE RS RAERE R ZEANREER
B HEBER-HIRGRERSES T RR; R
REHRRES REAGRBEERXE URR—BE
ERAGRMEZERGAEANRE - KBELE
AMBREERBEREANBAEZREEBRTEDESR
BRIBAEIER 2B N R EH e

RIBTTREREFE ASBAREZ S ESWIFT
RIS R AF E BB BEEMHIRA 2 Ei -5 1%
RZ2TEBRREAASWFTNetE R 2 BB T2 U
RAFHSWIFTNet:l B F MR ZF&EE R
MRIGYS) s BT T _FERA ABE B ZSWIFTHR
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SEBEHBERARLKBERBZEREECRHE I
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BEREMEAAREEEREETZEE B
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BN EREY
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RBFIREZ T RASERY) R EEER
EREPRYG MAMMRERZEB 2 RAER-
FAAEERSZEAANRERER BEES—
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HRBEZEERDEEBAETZALN B
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HEM-&L—BFE%R AERE - RBEERT
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REEETFRERBHEEHREHARS FF RS
MEMZAKN BUBEBEFLZES
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Managing Director’s Statement

Solution business

In line with the strategy to provide greater value to our major clients,
the Group continued to focus on promoting a wide range of tailor-
made solutions. Within the public sector, ASL was awarded a
contract to provide a Mobile Application System for housing
management and 5-year application maintenance and training
services for the Hong Kong Housing Authority. During the fourth
quarter, the Group was also awarded two additional multi-million
dollar orders from a government department to enhance a Web-based
mission critical system that would provide improved functionality.
Other tailor-made solutions provided during the year included a
Membership Relationship Management System for the Hong Kong
Federation of Youth Groups and a System Monitoring Solution for the
Vocational Training Council. The Group’s capacity to secure these
large-scale projects in FYO8 demonstrated ASL's continued ability to
deliver comprehensive solutions while efficiently leveraging our
existing vendor network and technical expertise.

Overseas business

Overseas business performance was satisfactory during the year.
Turnover rose 16.4% compared to last year. In Macau, the Group
benefited from the thriving gaming industry by securing multi-million
dollar contracts to provide Playing Card Tracking System, Baccarat
Score Board (BSB) System as well as SAN storage and backup
services to casinos. The Group now serves five out of six concession
holders allowed to operate casinos in Macau. To date, the Group has
deployed over 1,800 gaming tables with an estimated market
penetration rate of 80% for BSB Systems in casinos in Macau.

In Taiwan, following an extension from a branch office to a subsidiary
in May last year, the Group focused on gaining further penetration

into various industries and providing a wider range of products,
solutions and high-value services. The Group also made strides in
expanding our existing talent pool and vendor network. In Taiwan, ASL
has won a bid to provide an IT infrastructure upgrade and Oracle
professional services to one of the leading container shipping
companies. The Group also completed a project to provide 7 x 24
data center maintenance services for Retail Support International to
support operational efficiency.

Y

REBEESTHERZ ZE S ERRATER
KEEREEEPMEFREEZRE -ER %ﬁ%
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BNRGEZEREER ROBTEBRRFEAT
BT 12 4 2 ERIR 5 R EE 0 - [RI B AT A8 i ) A B AP
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Overseas business performance was satisfactory during the year.
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The subsidiary in Thailand continued to garner infrastructure and
services contracts from both private and public sectors. In February
2008, the Group secured a multi-million dollar contract from Bank for
Agriculture and Agricultural Cooperatives to deliver a large order of
desktop computers and printers for all of its branches in Thailand.

Outlook and Prospects
We continue to maintain Hong Kong as a centre of excellence, and
expand within the regional market with a focus mainly on Greater China.

In terms of local development, ASL's outlook on the Hong Kong market
remains positive as it continues to receive a steady stream of sizable IT
infrastructure, solution and services projects. With our continued efforts
in refining service offerings and enhancing our service capabilities, we
see an encouraging increase of orders in FYO8. One of the projects
recently awarded in June 2008 is a multi-million 5-year government IT
maintenance and support services contract for one of the largest
government departments. This contract includes 7 x 24 hardware and
software maintenance services that cover 40,000 pieces of
equipments over 100 customer sites. The Group will also dedicate
support teams to provide services to approximately 32,000 users. The
Group has also been awarded a 2-year on-site maintenance services
contract with one of the largest tertiary education institutes in Hong
Kong for its personal computer systems.

In Taiwan, the Group is extending vendor networks and strengthening
vendor relationship to bolster regional business development. For
instance, the Group has taken the first step to build its regional
relationship with Symantec by having its Hong Kong partnership
status extended into Taiwan. With this new partnership status, ASL
can operate on a greater scale and enjoy a broader range of
Symantec’s sales, marketing and technical support services. It also
provides ASL a greater leverage to grow the business and profitability.
ASL Taiwan also passed the Sun Co-Sell/Co-Deliver Provider (CCP)
assessment and is expected to be authorised as a Sun CCP services
partner in the second half of 2008. In addition, ASL's F5 ‘Gold
Advantage Partner’ status in Hong Kong has also extended to Taiwan.
These accolades again demonstrate ASL's capability and expertise in
offering relevant products and solutions to customers, allowing ASL to
pursue expansion opportunities in Taiwan.

In PRC, our subsidiary in Guangzhou won a contract for the provision
of IT infrastructure, networking and help desk support services to a
Hong Kong listed company’s major offices in Chengdu and Xiamen,
and completed a million dollar project for upgrading a multinational
corporation’s data centers in Guangzhou and Beijing in the year under
review. The Group has been continuing, and will do so, in its effort to
look for every opportunity for its business expansion in the Greater
China by way of inter alia forming alliances with strategic vendors to
strengthen its presence in the PRC.

EFRRLERE
Managing Director’s Statement
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Managing Director’s Statement

Having listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for more than ten
years, the Group will strive to reach for new heights in providing
comprehensive solutions and services to our existing clients in Hong
Kong, Macau, Taiwan, PRC and Thailand. Increasing staff costs will
remain as a challenge to the business of the Group. However, we will
focus on leveraging our capabilities and resources to achieve greater
economies of scale so that we can continue to provide high quality
products, excellent value, and reliable service to all clientele.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31st March, 2008, the Group's total assets of HK$995.0 million
were financed by current liabilities of HK$403.7 million, deferred
taxation of HK$23.1 million and shareholders’ equity of HK$568.1
million. The Group had a working capital ratio of approximately 1.9:1.

As at 31st March, 2008, the Group had an aggregate composite
banking facilities from banks of approximately HK$96.5 million of
which HK$26.9 million was utilised (31st March, 2007: HK$20.4
million). The Group's gearing ratio was zero (31st March, 2007; zero)
as at 31st March, 2008.

Treasury Policies

The Group generally financed its operations with internally generated
resources and credit facilities provided by banks. Bank facilities
available for the Group include trust receipt loans, overdrafts and term
loans. The interest rates of most of these will be fixed by reference to
the respective countries’ Interbank Offer Rate. The bank deposits will
be mainly in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars ("US dollars”).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in US dollars and
Hong Kong dollars. Foreign exchange exposure of the Group will
continue to be minimal as long as the policy of the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region to link the Hong Kong
dollars to the US dollars remains in effect. There was no material
exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates, and therefore no related
hedging financial instrument was applied during the year ended 37st
March, 2008.

Contingent Liabilities

Corporate guarantee to banks and vendors as security for banking
facilities and goods supplied to the Group amounted to approximately
HK$148.3 million as at 31st March, 2008. The amount utilised
against such facilities and goods supplied as at 31st March, 2008
which was secured by the corporate guarantee amounted to
approximately HK$3.7 million. The performance bond issued by the
Group to customers as security of contract was approximately
HK$26.9 million as at 31st March, 2008.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the five largest customers and single largest
customer of the Group accounted for approximately 14.9% and 4.5%,
respectively, of the Group’s revenue. The five largest suppliers and
single largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately
57.3% and 17.9%, respectively, of the Group’s purchases.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) have an
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31st March, 2008, the Group, excluding its associates,
employed 1,399 permanent and contract staff in Hong Kong, Macau,
Taiwan, mainland China and Thailand. The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, working experience and the
prevailing market conditions. Bonuses are granted on a discretionary
basis. Other employee benefits include mandatory provident fund,
insurance, medical coverage and share options scheme.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 25th
August, 2008 to 27th August, 2008, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify
for the final and special dividends and the entitiement to attend and
vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s registrars, Tricor Tengis Limited at 26/F Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on 22nd August, 2008. The dividend
warrants will be despatched on or before 10th September, 2008.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st March, 2008, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters including the
review of the audited annual results.

By Order of the Board
LAI Yam Ting
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 27th June, 2008
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1| Episodes of the Year

The celebration of ASL’s 10" anniversary of its listing
on SEHK
HERGAREBHEREMLTTRAEHE

The Company'’s directors and senior management staff toast together
at a cocktail dinner to celebrate the 10th anniversary of ASL’s listing
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

ARAZEZERRAERAR - ENEREBEIRAANERBER
i G

ASL Guangzhou provides IT solutions to improve
customers’ operation

BBRGEHEMNARARAEEANRBRIRUREEFEREE

ASL invites Mr. Peter Miao, Head of Information Technology of Hong
Kong Housing Society, to speak on how to deploy Service Oriented
Architecture for business efficiency.

i}

ABRGEEEIEERREAANETEREAS TOM
8 R DA SR A R R o

T AR 7%

\

ASL introduces world-class knowledge management
solutions to organizations

BBRGARBTAERARIBEERERTR

ASL collaborates with its business partners to organize an informative
seminar explaining the latest trends and technologies on knowledge
management. Subject expert, Professor Eric Tsui, Professor and
Associate Director, Knowledge Management Research Centre of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University, was invited to host a session.

BEBEAGEXBEHEMIT S BRANBEEZETI M REIM-

HHAERERTERTARBAAEER R P OBE LB BERLE
BB R —IRER-
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EMC Solution Forum 2007
EMCHE R 75 R iR 1E2007

Being EMC Velocity Premier Partner, ASL is invited to join EMC
Solution Forum 2007 for the fourth consecutive year. Visitors were
interested to know more about the information protection solution
showcased at ASL booth.

YE BEMC Velocity Premier Partner »+ B ) Z 5t E 8 2 EBEMCRR R 5 5
WIE 2007 - BB EAMEORBEEENFHRED N -HEEHEBRERAAN
BROANRER RS R FEE
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Episodes of the Year

ASL hospitality solution press conference

BHBRABAARBAEBRBRIERNERGS

With an aim of promoting its extensive experience and world-class
hospitality solution in local market, ASL Taiwan lines up with its
business partner and customers to hold a press conference at a hotel
in Taiwan.

EEES R B UNCIN A RESE S A e oy o e BV
g FEAEMTEEEREEATREBARBERRTRREELR-

Asset Management for Winning Business Seminar
EEEEMSE

ELM, the Group’s subsidiary, in collaboration with IBM organizes an
asset management seminar to bring local enterprises effective
solutions on managing IT and non-IT operational assets for improved
operational efficiency.

SEFRAAMMERMRARAFABHBVEREET RN A
FHEENBRRBARATRAETBTRIFTNEELE RABEL
B R

ICT Sports and Fun Day
EAREAEHELEA

ASL participates in the first ICT Sports and Fun Day to collaborate
with IT industry players and celebrate the Beijing Olympics together.

ERRG2EEERAANMRAEDRER HILFHDMBEERBH
W — R HEAL REE-

ASL receives “2007 EMC Greater China Enterprise
Partner of the Year” Award

HER#LEI2007EMC KT EBELXZTEFEE

Mr. Stanley Chan, Director, Group Product Marketing of ASL (left),
receives 2007 EMC Greater China Enterprise Partner of the Year”
award from Mr. Waters Wan, Vice President of EMC Greater China,
in recognition of ASL's strong business contribution to enterprise
segment of EMC business in Greater China region for the year 2007 .

BYESREEERTSHEERBBREMCRTEREIAEEE R
FHEE2007 EMCAHERCXEZEFER| REXKGADRL
R2007FHEMCR P EE XX BN S BER -
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

BEEF
HONG KONG CUSTOMER

GOVERNMENT B ff

EHE
SCOPE OF WORK

A government department

— {E B A BB P

Full system development lifecycle services for an asset management
system

RBEERAGRHZEZASRERARS

A government department
— fE B AT #B T

Provision of system analysis & design, system implementation &
integration, and system maintenance & support of a booking system
R—HEIRGREREST LR ZFHREERES UREAGRER
X &R

A government related organization

—E BT E R B

Supply, installation and maintenance of Internet Infrastructure and
Network Security Systems

HE ZREBEEOMEEERBRL 2RSSR

An aviation related organization

— Bz ERE%E

Provision of onsite analyst programmers
RUBMBEXONTESE

Customs and Excise Department

BEEH

Provision of 4-year maintenance and support services for a mission
critical application

REERERARGREAINFENEERERIERS

Department of Health
BHEE

Provision of Oracle software and professional services

R Oracle® 1 R HE R %

Hong Kong Housing Authority
EEFEEZE S

Provision of a Mobile Application System for housing management and
5-year application maintenance and training services

REEVEEBHEAG RSP R FZRA R #1E RIFI RSB

The Efficiency Unit
MERHEE

Implementation of the Youth Portal Project
EiES D FRBEBILIEEB

The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups

EETFHE

Provision of Membership Relationship Management System
RHESEHEREERLS

Three government departments

= {E B AT & P

EDUCATION H &

Provision of design and implementation services for Lotus Notes/Domino
upgrades
12t Lotus Notes/DominoFt # 2 s 5T & B ¥ R %5

Tak Sun Secondary School
mEPE

Implementation of 10G network
& 10648 4%

Vocational Training Council

BERBD
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Provision of system monitoring solution with the supply of hardware,
software and Oracle professional services

RUERGEZEBRRD R BIRHEHEEREMS B K OracleH ¥ R 7%



BEEF
HONG KONG CUSTOMER

BANKING & FINANCE R 1T &k & &t

RENMBEZEZAHN

Major Contracts Secured in the Year

EREE
SCOPE OF WORK

A leading international bank
— R ARG MBI RTT

Provision of hardware infrastructure for relocating and expanding client's
data center

REBLEREFPEBEDLREHEGARZ

A well-regarded financial organization

—HEZTREE

Provision of about 60 units of Sun servers and a series of enterprise
software products for core business application upgrade

RREATFPIZXEVERBAGREN60E Sunf Rk — &5 dEHRMS

Mitsubishi UFJ Securities (HK) Holdings Ltd.
SERBES (BE) BRERAA

TELECOMMUNICATIONS &3

Provision of Sun servers, backup and database software

Rt Sunfa AR 25 - #1H R EUR E 8T

A premier provider of a wide range of
communication services

— AR HER

Billing report system upgrade and the provision of 7x24 hardware
maintenance services

RAREREZGREH B =+ MW/NREFEERS

Provision of security appliances for centralized user authentication and
access policy management

RERBPETRFOBRREERELE2RME

A renowned telecommunication services provider

—HEREARBHEER

TRANSPORTATION E &

Provision of over 10 units of high performance servers and data storage
system for enhancing mobile phone services

REARDEZRBEHBIORSHRERARBERBEFT RS

Cathay Pacific Airways Limited
ZEMZEBR QA

Provision of over 1,000 desktop computers in a replacement project
AR—HEEREBRMEA1,000 &K FEH

Supply of storage infrastructure and high performance servers for flight
schedule system upgrade

REFMERHEREARREHEFERR S EREMARSE

Chu Kong Shipping Enterprises (Holdings) Co. Ltd.

KIHMBEE (KE) ERAF

A leading electronics manufacturing
services provider

—HELANETERRERBHER

A soft drink company

—RHEE AT

Provision of a Web-based ticketing system

REBLERALSR

Provision of servers, storage and networking products for data center
consolidation
REBPOZEERHEMARS BEREKER

Business intelligence project for the client’s offices in Hong Kong and China

REFPRERRTENNEREEHELLIEAR
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

BINEF
OVERSEAS CUSTOMER

Macau 2 Fj

EHE
SCOPE OF WORK

A public health institution
—ERE BRI

Provision of SAN storage and IT infrastructure

RUEBEHFEFEEREANRERZRS

One of the top six gaming and entertainment
operators in Macau
BFARKBEERRES LR 2 —

Mainland China & B X B

Provision of Baccarat Score Board System
REBREBRERS

A listed company in Hong Kong
—AREBH LT LA

Provision of IT infrastructure, networking and help desk support services
for customer’s major offices in Chengdu and Xiamen
REPRABREMHOTENSRIBHEANBRER BREKYAE
X &R

A multinational corporation in Hong Kong
—AREBNBERELA]

Provision of server upgrade and network security infrastructure with
3-year contract of hardware maintenance support for customer’s data
centers in Guangzhou and Beijing

REPREMNRILR 2 BEBEFORARBRERIBEAR L2 EER
B URRBM=ZF 2 EHREERE

A nuclear power plant
—XIZE K

Taiwan & &

Provision and implementation of a content management platform
for 1,000 users
R/I000EAFPRHERERARERT S

One of the leading container shipping companies

—HEREMEMEAF

Provision of IT infrastructure upgrade and Oracle professional services

REEABMRERZA R K OracleE % R

Retail Support International
REITHROBRAA

Thailand = E

Provision of 7x24 data center maintenance services

RELA -+ O/NSBURS LDEB R

Bank for Agriculture and Agricultural Cooperatives

REEREMEEAFHRT
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Provision of desktop computers and printers for all branches
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Profile of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITESE

Mr. LAl Yam Ting BEELEE
Managing Director of the Company RRNFZEFLLK
- Aged 55 - BRER+TARK

Graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor of Science degree (Honours) in 1976
General Manager of Hong Kong Operations of the

— R AT BEREER AR
EEE(%E) B8
C R—AN—FE-TE_FAKEE

Group from 1991 to 2002 BABEBKBKRE
— Joined the Group in 1976 and appointed as director of ~ — R— At NEMNBEAEBER— ANt
the Company in 1997 FREZTAARBIZES
Mr. LAU Ming Chi, Edward BgEERE
Finance and Administration Controller and Company ARFZ R BEITHABEF N A2
Secretary of the Company — BEN+ AR

Aged 45

Graduated from Lingnan College (now known as
Lingnan University) with a Honours Diploma in
Accountancy in 1984

Associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants

Fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom

Joined the Group in 1996 and appointed as director of
the Company in 1997

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

- R-NMN\EFEEENREMBER CRE4H
BARE) BEEFBEREER

- BRGHMAGZEE

- REBHFAREMMAEZEREER

— R—AARFENEAEERR -t
FRZERARAZES

FHTES

Mr. Allen Joseph PATHMARAJAH
Chairman of the Company

Aged 70

Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Marketing
Institute of Singapore

Appointed as director of the Company in 1997

Allen Joseph PATHMARAJAH & %

ARAlZEE

- RELTR

— RIRE R BBt A A RN
BH58R2ERGE

— R ANEFRZEREARAZESR

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED

HBRASEEERLT




24

BEE[EN

Profile of Directors

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. KUO Chi Yung, Peter
Deputy Chairman of the Company

Aged 63

Graduated from Ohio University, USA with a Bachelor
of Science degree and a Bachelor of Arts degree in
1968

BEHFERE
AREZBIEE
- BERT=®

—R-AARNFEEREBERZBAE
FARBLTRXB L\
- R AtmEmMBEAKERR -t

Graduated from Melbourne University, Australia with a

Bachelor of Electronic Engineering (Honours) degree in

1961

Founding member of the Group in 1973 and appointed

as director of the Company in 1997

— Joined the Group in 1974 and appointed as director of FREZFRARNBIZES
the Company in 1997

Mr. MOO Kwee Chong, Johnny REELXE

- Aged 68 — WESNTN\RK

—RAR—FEERRMBEAAKRE
FEEFIREB (RE)BLEL

— R At=FRRAKERR -t
FRZERARBZES

Mr. George Finlay BELL
(Resigned on 30th November, 2007)

Aged 55

Graduated from the Durham University Business
School and the University of Newcastle upon Tyne,
United Kingdom with a Master of Business
Management degree and a Bachelor of Mechanical
Engineering degree respectively

Former President of Asia Group of CSC*

Former Director of CSA*

Appointed as director of the Company in 2005

George Finlay BELL% &

(RZZET+F+—A=THEH)
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Mr. Michael SHOVE

Aged 51

Graduated from Kingston University, London, United
Kingdom with a Higher National Diploma in Business
President of Asia Group of CSC*

Director of CSA*

Appointed as director of the Company in 2007

Michael SHOVE % 4%
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Ex@EN

Profile of Directors

EHITEE ()

Mr. Darren John COLLINS

- Aged 39

— Graduated from the University of New South Wales,
Australia with a Bachelor of Commerce

— Member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
Australia (ICAA)

— Vice-president, Finance, Asia of CSC*

— Director of CSA*

— Appointed as alternate director of the Company in
2004

— Ceased as alternate director and appointed as director
of the Company in 2006

Darren John COLLINS% 4
— BE=FTm
- BERBMNTEBRBT RS SEHE

B8y

- BRNETeEmAgrE8

— CSCImME o % 2l a5
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E

- RIZEXRNFIBEABEEERES
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Mr. WANG Yung Chang, Kenneth

- Aged 61

— Graduated from Southern lllinois University and Fu-Jen
University with a Master of Computer Sciences degree
and a Bachelor of History degree respectively

— Vice-president and General Manager, China Group of
CSCr

— Appointed as director of the Company in 2006

WANG Yung Chang, Kenneth 4t &£

- BEST—RK

- EERNEFRMNEARERBLCKRE 55
BHEE H&ﬂgﬁﬁiﬂu&rfﬁimu

— CSCzH El= I # & ks

— RITEERFEZERRRAZES

Mr. Andrew John ANKER

- Aged 40

— Vice-president, Managed Services, Asia of CSC*
— Appointed as director of the Company in 2006

Andrew John ANKER % £
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BEE[EN

Profile of Directors

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BUFHITESE
Mr. CHEUNG Man, Stephen RXEE
- Aged 63 - BEXRT=m%
— Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered — REBREBITSTEHMAE CER
Accountants in England and Wales 28

Fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants

Former partner of the assurance and business advisory
services division of an international accounting firm
Appointed as director of the Company in 2004

- BEGHMAGZEAREE

- BE-BBREUEHETE T 2B RE
BHEBRBE2E %A

—R-FTNFERZERARAZESR

Mr. HON Sheung Tin, Peter

Aged 67

Practising solicitor in Hong Kong since 1970
Consultant of Hon & Co. Solicitors and Notaries
Notary public

Appointed as director of the Company in 1997
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Mr. LI King Hang, Richard

Aged 64

Graduated from Indiana University, USA with a Master
of Science degree in 1968

Former fellow member of the Institute of Data
Processing Management (UK)

Distinguished Fellow of the Hong Kong Computer
Society

Life member of the Australian Computer Society
Former Director of the Office of Information Technology
Services of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
Appointed as director of the Company in 1997

CSA Holdings Ltd (CSA) was privatised and became a wholly
owned subsidiary of Computer Sciences Corporation (CSC), the
ultimate holding company of the Group during FY0B6.

sELEE
— BEXNTER
— R ARNFEEREBD 2 BA
B REESERITEN
- ABBEEEE (KE) 2EREER
- EREMEBER L
- BNEMBEKAEE
- BEEAEIASEMAMEERER
—R-NWNLEFRZEBARAZES

* RZEZTRNBBEE  CSA Holdings Ltd

(CSAERLEIL B ARREZ HKRERA
&) Computer Sciences Corporation (CSC)Z &
=LiN=PNG|



TEEIRRE

Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate
governance to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identifying and formulating corporate
governance practices appropriate to the needs of its business.

The Company's corporate governance practices are based on the
principles (“Principles”) and code provisions (“Code Provisions”) as set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (*Stock
Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”). The Company has complied with most of
the Code Provisions save for deviation from the Code Provision in
respect of Code Provision A.4.1, details of which are explained
below. The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of
the CG Code.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board of
Directors (“Board”) in ensuring effective leadership and control of the

Company and transparency and accountability of all operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the

Company are summarized as follows:

Responsibilities
The Company has formalized and adopted the written terms on the
division of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the

management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and
plans with a view to enhancing shareholder interests while the day-to-
day operations of the Company are delegated to the management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Company, including: the approval of long term objectives and
strategies, changes to capital and overall corporate structure, internal
control and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant financial and operational
matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a
view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and

regulations are followed.
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Responsibilities (Continued)
Each director is normally able to seek independent professional

advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon

making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Managing Director (who is also the
chief executive officer within the meaning of the CG Code) and the
senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the Managing Director and the
senior management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience

necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business

needs.

The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lai Yam Ting
(Managing Director and Member of Management Committee)
Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward
(Finance & Administration Controller, Company Secretary and
Member of Management Committee)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Allen Joseph Pathmarajah
(Chairman of the Board and Member of Audit Committee)
Mr. Kuo Chi Yung, Peter
(Deputy Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Moo Kwee Chong, Johnny
Mr. Michael Shove
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee and
Management Committee) (appointed on 30th November, 2007)
Mr. Darren John Collins
(Member of Management Committee)
Mr. Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth
Mr. Andrew John Anker
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Composition (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Man, Stephen
(Chairman of Audit Committee and
Member of Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter
(Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Li King Hang, Richard
(Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Mr. George Finlay Bell resigned as non-executive director of the
Company on 30th November, 2007.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31st March, 2008, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive directors with at least one
independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter and Mr. Li King Hang, Richard had served
as independent non-executive directors of the Company for more
than nine years. They are neither connected with any connected
persons of the Group nor do they have any material interest in the
Group’s business activities. The Board considers that their length of
tenure will not impair their independence. The Company has received
written annual confirmation from Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter and Mr. Li
King Hang, Richard of their independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers them to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out
in the Listing Rules. Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter will offer himself for
re-election in accordance with the Company’'s Bye-laws and by a
separate resolution at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
Board recommended the proposal for Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter’s

re-election as an independent non-executive director.

The Company also has received written annual confirmation from Mr.
Cheung Man, Stephen, independent non-executive director, of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers him to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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Composition (Continued)

The non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors
bring a wide range of business and financial expertise, experiences
and independent judgement to the Board. Through active participation
in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving
potential conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all the
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors
make various contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors
The Company has established formal, considered and transparent

procedures for the appointment and succession planning of directors.

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should

be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

None of the existing non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company is appointed for a specific
term. However, all directors (including those appointed for a specific
term or holding office as Chairman or Managing Director) are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of

the Company in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors are subject
to retirement by rotation once every three years and any new director
appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as additional director shall be
subject to re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting

after appointment.

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating the relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment
and succession planning of directors and assessing the

independence of independent non-executive directors.
The Board reviewed its own structure, size and composition regularly

to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.
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Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors
(Continued)

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the
selection process by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of
the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations. An external recruitment
agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection

process when necessary.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Michael Shove who
has been appointed as non-executive director of the Company during
the year, shall retire and being eligible, offer himself for re-election at
the first general meeting after the appointment (i.e. the forthcoming
annual general meeting). In addition, Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Mr. Moo Kwee
Chong, Johnny, Mr. Darren John Collins and Mr. Hon Sheung Tin,
Peter shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of these directors
standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

The Company'’s circular regarding the notice of the forthcoming
annual general meeting contains detailed information of the directors
standing for re-election.

Training for Directors

Fach newly appointed director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as
to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and

relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing
and professional development to directors whenever necessary.

Board and Committee Meetings
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The Board has four regular meetings a year and holds additional
meetings as and when required. Five Board meetings were held
during the year.
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Board and Committee Meetings (Continued)

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance (Continued)

The individual attendance record of each director at the meetings of
the Board, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee during the
year ended 31st March, 2008 is set out below:

ExgRZEEEERE ()
EHREREFELFEAL (B
REBE-_ZZN\F=A=+—HLFER TE=F
REFE FNZEeRERZRETERZ2AEM L
JFRiskEH T

Attendance/Number of Meetings held
during the tenure of directorship

REECHAAHE CRITEBEXE
Remuneration Audit
Board Committee Committee
Name of Directors EENA 8 FMEEE BRZEEE
Executive Directors BITES
Lai Yam Ting BEE 5/5 N/A N/A
TiEA T iEA
Lau Ming Chi, Edward A 5/5 N/A N/A
T iE A TEMA
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Allen Joseph Pathmarajah Allen Joseph Pathmarajah 5/5 N/A 4/4
i A
Kuo Chi Yung, Peter ZPEPE 5/5 N/A N/A
i A i A
Moo Kwee Chong, Johnny S=g=! 5/5 N/A N/A
TiE A TEA
George Finlay Bell George Fin\ay Bell 3/3 2/2 N/A
(resigned on 30th November, 2007) (RZZETLF+—A=+HEMT) 5 A
Michael Shove Michael Shove 1/2 0/0 N/A
(appointed on 30th November, 2007) (RZZEZE+F+—A=1+HEZMT) A
Darren John Collins Darren John Collins 5/5 N/A N/A
i A 3 A
Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth 4/5 N/A N/A
i A 3 A
Andrew John Anker Andrew John Anker 5/5 N/A N/A
i A i A
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUKBITES
Cheung Man, Stephen ok 3¢ 5/5 2/2 4/4
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter w2 MH H 5/5 2/2 4/4
Li King Hang, Richard S 5/5 2/2 4/4
Practices and Conduct of Meetings BEFHEEF

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate
maximum attendance of directors. Notices of regular Board meetings
are served to all directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For
other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally
given.
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Board and Committee Meetings (Continued)

Practices and Conduct of Meetings (Continued)

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all directors at least 3 days (or such
other period as agreed) before each Board meeting or committee
meeting to keep the directors apprised of the latest developments
and financial position of the Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. The Board and each director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of
all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable time
after each meeting and the final version is open for directors’
inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s Bye-laws also contain
provisions requiring directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in
which such directors or any of their associates have a material
interest.

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the
Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director to ensure a
balance of power and authority.

The positions of the Chairman and Managing Director are held by Mr.
Allen Joseph Pathmarajah and Mr. Lai Yam Ting respectively. Their
respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate
governance practice. With the support of the senior management, the
Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Managing Director focuses on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge
of the Company’s day-to-day management and operations. The
Managing Director is also responsible for developing strategic plans
and formulating the organizational structure, control systems and
internal procedures and processes for the Board's approval.
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The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Management
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and are

available to shareholders upon request.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the

Company’s expenses.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from
time to time to facilitate the Company’s operations.

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Michael Shove and all the three independent non-executive
directors are the members of the Remuneration Committee and Mr.
Michael Shove is the chairman of the Committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages of all directors and the
senior management and share options matters. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent procedures
for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that
no director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by
reference to the performance of the individual and the Company as
well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year for
reviewing the remuneration policy and structure and determination of
the annual remuneration packages of all directors and the senior
management and other related matters. The Remuneration Committee
shall consult the Chairman and/or the Managing Director of the
Company about these recommendations on remuneration policy and

structure and remuneration packages.
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31st March, 2008. The works performed included the
following:

(@) To review executive directors’ remuneration package.
(b)  To review and recommend an increase in non-executive
directors’ and independent non-executive directors’

remuneration package.

(c) To approve grant of share options.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises Mr. Allen Joseph Pathmarajah and

the three independent non-executive directors (including one

independent non-executive director who possesses the appropriate

professional gualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise) and Mr. Cheung Man, Stephen is the
chairman of the Committee. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company'’s existing external

auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) To review the financial statements and reports and consider any

significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant,

internal auditor or external auditor before submission to the
Board.

(b)  To review the relationship with the external auditor by reference
to the work performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the

appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor.

(c)  To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk

management system and associated procedures.

rEELRSE
Corporate Governance Report

FMEES (&)
REZE-—FTNEF=A=+—HLFEXN FHZ
BERBETMAGRA -MBEAZIERENLT
A

(@) FHRTEEZHFMAESE-

(o) FHREFEMIERTESRBIIFNTE
EZ2HMAE-

(c) HUAERLIBAHE-

EREEE

E %% 8 g i Allen Joseph Pathmarajanfc £ & =
BBV PTES (BE—RHEEETEER
S AR BERER BN TES) H
HRNEEREEGIR -HEEREZEGZKE
TR RBIREINEZ AN 2 RIE SR A

ERZEGZIERABE TSR
(a) HHUBBEREME BRAERGFE K

ﬁBT?%IEﬂiEWI\H*V%(EﬂH sz{ﬂﬂij@jﬂ\
BER NRRXEEZ-

(o) BEBINEZBEETZIE ERERER
BFC R EZ B R U ER &
BRERIEEZEMzEE MEETRH

) BMEHARAFBRE R NAEZRR
ﬂl‘ﬁ”ﬁ”ﬁ? L‘A&*HE@%%J?%EE%@&%

°

>§2\_

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
HBRASEEERLT



PEEARS
Corporate Governance Report

Audit Committee (Continued)
The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31st
March, 2008. The works performed including the following:

(@) To review the financial results and reports, financial reporting
and compliance procedures.

(b)  To review the reports from the external auditor, management

letters and management response.

(c) To consider a quarterly representation from senior management
in connection with financial statements and internal control

matters.
(d)  To review corporate governance matters.
(e)  To review the re-appointment of the external auditor.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a

going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditor.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31st March, 2008
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Management Committee

The two executive directors together with Mr. Michael Shove and Mr.
Darren John Collins are the members of the Management Committee
and Mr. Michael Shove is the chairman of the Management
Committee.

The Management Committee is primarily responsible for managing
and reviewing the Company’s day-to-day operations and financial
reporting, and making recommendations in respect of the objectives
and strategies of the Group. The Management Committee meets
monthly to discuss the related issues.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31st March, 2008.

The Company also has established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of

the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, quarterly
results, price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March,
2008.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“‘Independent Auditor's Report” on page 52.

The non-audit work performed by the external auditor included the
annual review on connected transactions and the tax compliance
services. The remuneration paid or payable to the external auditor of
the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for
the year ended 371st March, 2008 amounted to approximately
HK$1,317,000 and HK$120,000 respectively.
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The management is primarily responsible for designing, implementing
and maintaining internal controls, while the Board and Audit
Committee review the effectiveness of the controls. The internal
control system includes a quarterly representation from senior
management in connection with financial statements and internal
control matters, a defined management structure with limits of
authority designed to achieve business objectives, safeguard assets
against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance
with relevant rules and regulations. The system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in operational systems and achievement of the Company’s
objectives.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of internal
control system of the Group. The review covers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk

management functions.

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll
on resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained in the
Company's Bye-laws. Details of such rights to demand a poll and the
poll procedures are included in all circulars to shareholders and will
be explained during the proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be published in accordance with the Listing Rules and

posted on the website of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee, or in their absence, other members
of the respective committees, and where applicable, the independent
Board committee, are available to answer questions at the
shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each

substantial issue, including the election of individual directors.
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The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to
keep them abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from

investors are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a
website at http://www.asl.com.hk, where extensive information and
updates on the Company's business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are posted.

On behalf of the Board

LAI Yam Ting
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 27th June, 2008
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The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31st March, 2008.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services. The principal activities of its
associates and subsidiaries are set out in notes 17 and 33,
respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated

income statement on page 54.

An interim dividend of 4.0 HK cents per share amounting to
HK$11,848,000 was paid to the shareholders during the year. The
directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of 6.0 HK
cents per share and a special dividend of 11.0 HK cents per share
after considering the Group’s cash position and the needs of
business development. The proposed dividends will be paid to the
shareholders on the register of members on 22nd August, 2008,
amounting to HK$50,432,000, and the remaining profit be retained

for the year.

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in

the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 57 to the
consolidated financial statements.

At 31st March, 2008, the Group’s special reserve and accumulated

profits totalling HK$4 14,446,000 (FYO7: HK$385,663,000).

The Company'’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders at
371st March, 2008 include contributed surplus and accumulated
profits totalling HK$91,166,000 (FY07: HK$90,816,000).
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During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$48,267,000 on

property, plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements during the year in property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Movements during the year in share capital of the Company are set
out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

this report were:

Executive directors
Lai Yam Ting
Lau Ming Chi, Edward

Non-executive directors
Allen Joseph Pathmarajah
Kuo Chi Yung, Peter
Moo Kwee Chong, Johnny
Darren John Collins
Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth
Andrew John Anker
Michael Shove
(appointed on 30th November, 2007)
George Finlay Bell
(resigned on 30th November, 2007)

Independent non-executive directors
Cheung Man, Stephen

Hon Sheung Tin, Peter

Li King Hang, Richard
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In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 99, Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Mr.
Moo Kwee Chong, Johnny, Mr. Darren John Collins and Mr. Hon
Sheung Tin, Peter will retire by rotation. In addition, Mr. Michael
Shove, being non-executive director appointed by the Board during
the year, will hold office only until the first general meeting after the
appointment (i.e. the forthcoming annual general meeting) pursuant to
the Company’s Bye-law 102(B). All retiring directors, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

The term of office of each of the non-executive directors is the period
up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws.

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below, no contracts of significance to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end

of the year or at any time during the year.
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As at 31st March, 2008, the interests and short positions of the

directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,

underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and

Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”")) which (a) were required to be notified to

the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the

SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or

deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or

(b) were

required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the

register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

(the "“Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange, were as follows:

(a) Shares

Name of company

AEE

Automated Systems
Holdings Limited
EBEREEBRAA

Automated Systems
(H.K.) Limited

BHEM (FE)ERAA

Director

=

Lai Yam Ting
HEE

Kuo Chi Yung, Peter
FEHGE

Lai Yam Ting
BEE

Kuo Chi Yung, Peter
BE R

Personal
interests

PN £

4,141,621

9,271,241

1,070,000

2,140,000'

Family
interests

Rk g
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(b) Underlying shares

Name of

company Director

AR BB B=

Automated Systems Lai Yam Ting
Holdings Limited EEE

BEHRGEEERQA
Lau Ming Chi, Edward
218875

Kuo Chi Yung, Peter
20 H 5

Computer Sciences Michael Shove
Corporation
Darren John Collins

Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth

Andrew John Anker

George Finlay Bell

Notes:

1. These shares were non-voting deferred shares.

Personal
interests

8 A fE %

2,135,000°

1,686,000°

587,000°

165,364447

17,630°87

8,630%47

7,163%47

100,5630°&7

2. The issued share capital of Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited comprise

55,350,000 non-voting deferred shares and 2 ordinary shares. The 2 ordinary

shares are beneficially owned by the Company.

&, Options to acquire ordinary shares of the Company, further details of which

are set out in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” below.

4. Comprise options to acquire 149,000 shares of common stock of Computer

Sciences Corporation (“CSC") and 6,364 restricted stock units.

5. Options to acquire common stock of CSC.

6. Comprise options to acquire 94,166 shares of common stock of CSC and

6,364 restricted stock units as at the date of the director’s resignation effective

30th November, 2007.

7. The directors’ options to acquire shares in CSC are remuneration in their

capacities as executives of these related corporations.
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Save as mentioned above, as at 31st March, 2008, none of the
directors and the chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

Details of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in note

27 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share
options during the year:

Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

ROEBRERFRTZRE

Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled
At during during during during At
1.4.2007 the year the year the year the year 31.3.2008
Name of directors R-FELE  REEE  REEE  REEE REEE R-FENE
£33 mA-H Rk R & A% R =ZA=1-A
Lai Yam Ting 490,000 = = = = 490,000
BEE 245,000 - - - - 245,000
196,000 = = = = 196,000
412,000 = = = = 412,000
232,000 = = = = 232,000
248,000 = = = = 248,000
124,000 = = = = 124,000
= 188,000 = = = 188,000
1,947,000 188,000 = = = 2,135,000
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Date Exercise

of grant Exercise period price
ROBREAS RAR kg
HKS

BT

2.3.1999 3.3.2001 toE 2.3.2009 0.90
19.10.1999 20.10.2001 t0% 19.10.2009 2.30
27.7.2001 27.7.2003 toE 26.7.2011 2.40
20.11.2002 20.11.2003 0% 19.11.2012 1.34
6.8.2004 6.8.2005 t0Z 5.8.2014 1.28
9.6.2005 9.6.2006 to£ 8.6.2015 1.98
30.6.2006 30.6.2006 t0% 29.6.2016 1.95
4.10.2007 4.10.2008 t0% 3.10.2017 2.32
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Name of directors

f £3:3

Lau Ming Chi, Edward
L

Kuo Chi Yung, Peter
HEE

Employees

AtES

o>

Total &%

Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

At

1.4.2007
R-2%tE
mA-A

120,000
148,000
330,000
140,000
210,000
428,000

60,000

1,436,000

245,000
218,000
124,000

587,000

250,000
1,370,000
66,000
40,000
1,632,000
1,402,000
1,862,000
2,350,000
2,460,000
964,000
1,166,000

13,641,000

17,611,000

Granted
during
the year
REEE
Rk

150,000

150,000

2,550,000

2,550,000

2,888,000

RIGBRERFETZRE
Exercised Lapsed
during during

the year the year
REEE  RAEE
R AES:
(80,000) =
(115,000) (10,000)
- (10,000)
(108,000) (10,000)
(522,000) (24,000)
(772,000) (16,000)
(336,000) (28,000)
(120,000) =
(190,000) (10,000)
(244,000) (68,000)
(2,487,000)  (176,000)
(2,487,000)  (176,000)

Cancelled
during At
the year 31.3.2008
REEE R-EENE
mAE#E =A=1-A

= 120,000
= 148,000
= 330,000
- 140,000
= 210,000
= 428,000
= 60,000
= 150,000

- 1,686,000

- 245,000
= 218,000
- 124,000

= 587,000

= 170,000
- 1,245,000
= 55,000
- 40,000
- 1,614,000
= 856,000
- 1,064,000
- 1,986,000
- 2,340,000
- 764,000
- 844,000
- 2,550,000

- 13,428,000

- 17,736,000

The closing price of the shares immediately before the date of last
grant was HK$2.27.
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Date

of grant

RABREAM

19.10.1999
27.7.2001
20.11.2002
6.8.2004
9.6.2006
19.6.2006
30.6.2006
4.10.2007

19.10.1999
27.7.2001
30.6.2006

2.3.1999
19.10.1999
11.2.2000
30.6.2000
27.7.2001
20.11.2002
6.8.2004
9.6.2006
19.6.2006
30.6.2006
30.6.2006
4.10.2007

RERLBAMARO 2 ETER227E T

Exercise period

TRER

20.10.2001 toZ 19.10.2009
27.7.2003 toX 26.7.2011
20.11.2008 toZ 19.11.2012
6.8.2005 toZ 5.8.2014
9.6.2006 toZ 8.6.2015
19.6.2007 toE 18.6.2016
30.6.2006 t0ZE 29.6.2016
4.10.2008 t0Z 3.10.2017

20.10.2001 toZ 19.10.2009
27.7.2003 toX 26.7.2011
30.6.2006 toZ 29.6.2016

3.3.2001 to% 2.3.2009
20.10.2001 toZ 19.10.2009
12.2.2002 toE 11.2.2010
1.7.2002 toE 30.6.2010
27.7.2003 toX 26.7.2011
20.11.2008 toZ 19.11.2012
6.8.2005 to% 5.8.2014
9.6.2006 toZ 8.6.2015
19.6.2007 toE 18.6.2016
30.6.2006 toZ 29.6.2016
30.6.2007 toZ 29.6.2016
4.10.2008 toZ 3.10.2017

Exercise
price
T
HKS
BT

2.30
2.40
1.34
1.28
1.98
1.95
1.95
2.32

2.30
2.40
1.95

0.90
2.30
3.35
3.40
2.40
1.34
1.28
1.98
1.95
1.95
1.95
2.32
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BREXTEEZERORBBERND ZEE] R [BR
BB PEEIN AR EEAZERAR R
Z T A ) KM A R ] B R AR R R
EARE BEARRZEZAEBEARARE

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Schemes” above,
at no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding

companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any

arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire

benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,

the Company or any other body corporate.

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with
its fellow subsidiaries and ultimate holding company which constituted
connected transactions under The Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”):

Name of company

ASL Services
and Products

fi] E A 7R A B 88 2 B S AB 7 T ) -

FRAEEEERRNE QR RREERARE
TFEHEEER S (RIBH A
mARAM) T

EHrEMHRATE

CSC Services
and Products

ARER ASLIEBEREM CSCREREMR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
CSA (PRC) Company Limited Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products - 257
AN TE B RS R E m
Non-Outsourcing Project Services and Products 49 -
FESNHITE B R K E @
CSC Computer Sciences Pte Limited  Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products - 2,709
EANHTE B RS R E M
CSC Computer Sciences (HK) Limited Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products - 98
g o TE B RS & E m
Non-Outsourcing Project Services and Products 1 -
FESNHIIE B PR K E
CSA Automated Pte Limited Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products - 8,705
EANHTE B RS R E M
Non-Outsourcing Project Services and Products 3,963 -

JESNHIIR B RIS R E m

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
HBRASEEERLTF



EEGHE

Directors’ Report

Name of company
ARER

CSA MSC Sdn Bhd

Computer Systems

Advisers (M) Berhad

CSC Taiwan Limited

Computer Sciences Corporation

CSC Canada Limited

CSC UK Limited

Annual Report 2008 F $§

ASL Services
and Products

ASLIR % & E @

HK$'000

FHET

Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products -
AN TE B RS R E m

Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products =
BN FITE B RS R E S

Non-Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products 196

FEE M AN IR B PR K E @
Non-Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products 195

JEE SN FIIE B IR K E M

Local Outsourcing Project Services and Products

= SN HIIE B IR N E m

Non-Outsourcing Project Services and Products

FESNHIA B RIS RE M

CSC Services
and Products
CSCHRR#EREM
HK$'000

TET

462

1,466

54

1,016



Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the board of directors
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed upon
procedures in respect of the continuing connected transactions of the
Group. The auditor has reported their factual findings on these
procedures to the board of directors.

All of the independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, where there are no
sufficient comparables, on terms no less favorable to the Group

than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements govemning them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

As at 31st March, 2008, so far as is known to the directors and chief
executives of the Company, the interests and short positions of every
person, other than directors or chief executive of the Company

in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO were as follows:

EEGHE

Directors’ Report

RIFELETHRAUE4ABKERE EEEERAAQT
RBMAAEEZKEMEXZBTETOHE
ZRF-ZHMENETERERSTREFZ2ER
Kk

ARFEBBIFNTESCRARER Lt
= > )—5:

() EARTDBER-—MREBBESDET:

(i) B—RERGFET KWL EERHXHAE
E RS AREME TERRERTBYS
SHHREBYE=TREZGIET R

(i) BMHAERXHZBRME . RFAETT ZIERT
BRAVPABYRFAARARR 2EENE

R-ZBN\F=A=+—R REERALAELE
ABABHA THAL (ARANEERTETR
ABRRSN) RAR 7 2 M 15 AR B AR A oh 77 18 1
EHROEEOEXVBERS BAMAR TR
B2 ERAAR:

Percentage
of issued
Number of ordinary share capital
Name of shareholder shares of the Company held EBITREAZ Notes
RREB AFBEZEERROEAE Bab Bt 5
Direct Deemed
interest interest Total %
BEEER WA AR & #
CSA Holdings Ltd (“CSA”) 189,701,896 - 189,701,896 63.95 1
CSC Computer Sciences International
Inc. (“CSI") 183,730,000 189,701,896 203,431,896 68.57 1
Computer Sciences Corporation (“CSC”) - 203,431,896 203,431,896 68.57 2

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
HBRASEEERLTF
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Notes:

1. CSl beneficially owned 100% of CSA and was accordingly deemed to be
interested in 189,701,896 shares of the Company. In addition, CSI owned
directly 13,730,000 shares of the Company.

2. CSC, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, CSI, was deemed to be interested
in 203,431,896 shares of the Company.

Save as mentioned above, as at 31st March, 2008, there was no
other person (other than the directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

The Company has complied throughout the year ended 31st March,
2008 with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules except with respect to Code A.4.1,
all non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.
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1.  CSIEZHEBCSA 100%E s MKBEHEEARNDF]
2.189,701 806 I 15 Z 12k o LL SN CSIE B HEB A
A B 213,730,0008% B {5 °

2. CSCHBEZEHAMBARCSHRIERERATR
2203,431,896 % IR 1n R #E A R 2h o

BEXFREN R-EBNEZAS+—A %
EEMEMAL (AAAEEREIETRABR
5h) RAR R 2 BB SRR o A B IE B 5 R
B EXVEE2RSH B2 B AMAD T EE
ZHEREAR
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EARBZ AT BAREED T WL EA R
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—HETFETRAMNEI4E 2 (EEERTRT
A1) ERTRIEA4MEM S AR B2 RBIFNTT
EEYFRETERELZE EAREAQFAL
ZHEMESRIYEREEE-



The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix

10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all directors,
all directors confirmed they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31st March, 2008.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the directors confirmed
that the Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31st March, 2008.

The audit committee, which was established pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, comprising Mr. Cheung Man,
Stephen, Mr. Allen Joseph Pathmarajah, Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter
and Mr. Li King Hang, Richard met fourth times in the year. During the
meetings, the Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
the connected transactions, accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group including the review of the audited annual
results, unaudited interim and quarterly results, and discussed various

auditing, financial reporting and internal control matters.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

LAI Yam Ting
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 27th June, 2008
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RRR DR LR BN EOPTE 2 R ESF R K
ARERESRBE-_FTT/\F=ZA=1t—AL
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EA—BE#RBARZAZFERE:-

BEZZEBGHRE EMARRAZABEMKL EKXKE
BLIE 3R X% &~ Allen Joseph Pathmarajahst 4 - %2
HEEEREEHEE-FRN BREEEEHRT

Mregs - EXZE8eCHATEEEHNBER
S URKEEBRMBz 5T R RED (REEH
@%ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ*$ﬁ§%¢%&§giﬁfﬂﬁ
ERENRE TRE UBERREABELEEE-

KRARAREERRBFRG LREZRZRER
BYWERT EFMEBA AR 2L HED-

EREEEM
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Deloitte.
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s

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
BBRAGEEARAA

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Automated
Systems Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 117,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March,
2008, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Annual Report 2008 F $§

H EABRSEEEARLA
ERERE
(REREZMA L ERLAF])

AREME TR BREMEVNTEMB BB RNE
BERAR([EAA]) REMELR (RRE[EE
B zZaMBRc EPRER _STN\F=A
ST -BAZGEREERBRERBEZRYLFE
ZEARER RARaEHRREARERER
RIEetREBMEREMHEANE-

ERREFABERBEASHMLEEMZE
B EmEERRBECREED) BEZRER
ERBLEBMAFHINRZEFAMBRKR B
BERRERT BEhgEERELAEM AT
FIsRAR A M B MRABE 2 NARES) WEE AU
BRI FEARKFHERMEH 2 ERERR
aRENMEREE 2R EEK REBR T EY
BBz g hEre

FIZEERRBATZEREZERAVBR
RIFHBR AT ZHEER/RBEARE(RFE)
SFOOEMBIR (fEA—EEE) ®E LT EEM
R ATETRARE 2 AT HER E M A L&
BEENEFEIEIEMNEFT-ATEREFTESH
BRERM 2 BEAETEAETER - ELERE
RATETERRABE LRI HITER UEE
BEGAMBRREETFAETAEANH R



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’'s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2008
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27th June, 2008

18 % BUAD 3R &
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE_TZN\F=A=+—BLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

Turnover

Cost of goods sold

Cost of services rendered
Other income

Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Dividends

Eamnings per share
Basic

Diluted
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e

HERA
ROtIR T 2 A
HA Y A
HEEM
THE M
BMERK
iy A NI 3

Bk 75 A g A
B8

HA 79 A

A B

SR AT
Ee

B8

Notes

ot =

13

14

2008
SIS
HK$’000
FHR

1,393,393
(799,508)
(425,547)

32,589
(69,487)
(42,626)

(2)
463

89,275
(13,122)

76,153

47,370

HK cents

pi=R 1]

25.76

25.51

2007
ZTTLF
HK$'000
FET

1,274,979
(766,438)
(376,438)

16,694
(52,974)
(34,042)

(7)
163

61,837
(8,277)

53,560

41,170

HK cents

Al

18.21

18.10



NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Interests in associates
Available-for-sale investments

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories

Trade receivables

Other receivables, deposits and

prepayments
Tax recoverable
Short term bank deposits
Bank balances and cash

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and bills payables
Other payables and accruals
Receipts in advance

Tax liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
Deferred taxation

Consolidated

FRBEE

W BE k&
BWEE

A WNSL: ¥

AHHERE

RBEE

3

FEW B 5 7R

H A WA E & R
B RIA

AJ Y [ 35 78
5EHRIT R
RITEHIRS

REBAE
ENESRARRE
Hit R~ RIB R ETER
U e

HIEAE

RBEEFH

HEERRBAE

FRBEAE
TR TR

Balance Sheet

—EEN\F=ZA=+—8

2008

—EZTN\EF

Notes HK$’000
L: FHExT
15 223,225
16 4,138
17 705
18 -
228,068

19 111,556
20 191,488
21 65,202
22 100
22 398,581
766,927

28 182,058
24 75,920
139,392

6,362

403,732

363,195

591,263

25 23,142
568,121

At 31st March, 2008

2007
—ETLF
HK$'000
FET

199,916
5,283
242
33,641

239,082

108,973

135,919

60,871

4,497

7,914

335,197

653,371

185,352

65,810
97,934

349,096

304,275

543,357

19,402

523,955

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
HBRASEEERLTF
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
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At 31st March, 2008

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRfHE
Share capital f& A
Reserves 1

Total equity A

The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 117 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27th
June, 2008 and are signed on its behalf by:

LAI Yam Ting
BEE
Managing Director
EFELE
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2008

—BENF

Notes HK$’000
Bt 2 FET

26 29,666
538,455

568,121

AN HRERAFESLIEVITEEHES

2007
ZETLF
HK$'000
FET

29,417

494,538

523,955

EREE

=

NERAZ+TERARERBEERATEE:

LAU Ming Chi, Edward
28 &
Executive Director

HITEE



At 1st April, 2006

Exchange difference on translation

of overseas operations
Revaluation increase of
leasehold land and buildings
Deferred taxation arising on
revaluation of leasehold land
and buildings
Increase in fair value of

available-for-sale investments

Net income recognised
directly in equity
Profit for the year

Total recognised income

for the year
Exercise of share options
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments
Special dividend for FYO6 paid

Final dividend for FY06 paid

Interim dividend for FYO7 paid

RZEZRE
mMA—AH
REBNEB
ERZR
BETHRET
EfiiE
FERAELHE
BFEMEELL
ERHE
MHEERE
NEBBEEM

ERRBAER
BUA
FEEH

ERBZEEBIA

TEBERE
HRBRAREE AR
SANPAIE
RE_ZE MHEE
AR S
RE_TTAUBREE
RERE
RE_ZTLHBER
HHRE

Share
capital
Bx
HK$000
FTERL

29,379

38

Share
premium
R a &
HK$'000
TER

74,008

458

Special

reserve

BHER
HK$ 000
TERL

34,350

Investment
revaluation
reserve
RE
Effitf
HK$000
FTERL

3,587

10,551

10,551

10,551

=lPAN

\\/T\
Consolidated Statement of Change in Equity

HE_TT/N\F=ZA=+—-HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

Property
revaluation
reserve
ES
EftiE
HK$'000
FTER

3,682

12,836

(2,246)

10,690

10,690

Translation
reserve
EERE
HK$ 000
TERL

(87)

1,469

1,469

1,469

I—\/

PAN

Share
options
reserve

BRERE
HK$000
TERL

3,022

1,645

Accumu-
lated
profits
REEN
HK$'000
AR

338,923

53,560

53,560

(17,643

(14,702)

(8,825)

ﬁ%&§§]§§%

Total
ag
HK$'000
THT
486,814

1,469

12,836

(2,246)

10,651

22,610

53,560

76,170

496

1,645

(17,643

(14,702)

(8,825)

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HE-_ZTN\F=A=+—RALEFE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008

Investment  Property

revaluation revaluation Share  Accumu-
Share Share  Special  reserve  reserve Translation  options lated
capital premium  reserve RE N%  reserve  reserve  profits Total

R ROEEER KHBR ERRE ERRE EBRE BRERSE REEN B8
HK000  HK$000  HKB000  HK$O000  HKBO00  HK$000  HKBOOO  HK$000  HKE'000
AL FiEx FEL T TiEx TEL T TiEx FEL

At 31st March, 2007 RZZTtE
SfHSr=E 29,417 74,466 34,350 14,088 14,272 1,382 4,667 351,313 523,955
Exchange difference on translation #E BN EH 2
of overseas operations ELEER - - - - - 2,746 - = 2,746
Revaluation increase of HETHRETF
leasehold land and buildings HiEEE - - - - 26,155 - - - 26,155
Deferred taxation arising on RERHRELTHR
revaluation of leasehold land and  BFME4£Z
buildings EREHE - - - - (4577 - - - (4577
Increase in fair value of AEHERE
available-for-sale investments AT EBEEMN - - - 7174 = = = = 7174
Net income recognised BERRAER
directly in equity FUA - - - 7174 21578 2,746 - - 31,498
Profit for the year EEHEM = - - - - - - 76,153 76,153
Total recognised income BRAZEELBA
for the year - - - 7174 21,578 2,746 - 76,153 107,651
Exercise of share options 171 B AR 249 3,780 - - - - - - 4029
Release on disposal of HEMHLERERER
available-for-sales investments - - - (21,262 - - - - (21,262
Recognition of equity-settled BRARALEE AR
share-based payments THZEH - - - - - - 1,118 - 1,118
Special dividend for FY07 paid ~ EE-ZE+LEHHEE
BRIk - - - - = = - (ar7en  (17,761)
Final dividend for FYO7 paid EE-_TTLHREE
RE®RE - - - - = = - (7781 (17,761)
Interim dividend for FY08 paid ~ EE-FENHBREFE
RERE - - - - = = - (11,848 (11,848
At 31st March, 2008 RZBENE
=A=+-8 29,666 78,246 34,350 - 35,850 4,128 5,785 380,096 568,121
The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between AEBERNEBTIER—NWNLEERN REAE
the nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the HEHRRARARNNREBHERSMBER AR Emm
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at ETEGMMEEBZHNBRARBCEITRM 2EER
the time of the group reorganisation prior to the listing of the AABAEMBETZROZEEMREZBZEZ8-

Company'’s shares in 1997.
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:;
Share of results of associates
Finance costs
Share-based payment expense
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of intangible assets
Interest income
Gain on disposal from
available-for-sale investments
Dividend income from

available-for-sale investments

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade receivables
Increase in other receivables,
deposits and prepayments
(Decrease) increase in trade and
bills payables
Increase in other payables and accruals
Increase (decrease) in receipts in advance

Cash from operations

Tax refunded

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
Overseas taxation paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

AR RER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE_TT/N\F=ZA=+—-HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

2008
—EENE
HK$’000
FEx
mEEK
K B4 Al g A 89,275
AEER
FEMREE AR EE (463)
A& K AR 2
RGO AERIF 2R 1,118
RIZREE 115
=% = 51,591
EEWE - BER&EZEIE
1,535
HEEVEEZERE 166
F B A (8,250)
AHEEREZHERMB
(20,690)
e HEEREZREWA
(398)
Rt 2 EBEREHAT 2
KEXBRERE 114,001
FE 2N (2,583)
FE W B 5 F IR N (55,729)
HthEWER e R
TE T FIE I 1,496
ERBSHRERERE CRL) En
(3,294)
Hfth FEAS AR 1B % FE ST B A 18 0 3,909
T8 U g w0 Ot 2) 41,458
REKEEB 2R 99,258
BRERIE 4,497
BERBEBEFER (7,369)
B8N IE (228)
REEKASTFHE 96,158

2007
—ETLF
HK$'000
FET

61,837

(163)

1,645
3,428
45,018

187
926
(9,908)

(2,683)

100,294
(26,565)
(33,684)

(17,959)

57,839
5,204
(406)

84,743

(8,677)
(1,100)

74,966

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE_TZN\F=A=+—BLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Advance to) repayment from
fellow subsidiaries
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Additions to intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale investments
Interest received
Decrease (increase) in short term
pbank deposits
Dividend received from listed securities
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment from immediate
holding company
Repayment from an associate
Advance from ultimate holding company
Advance from immediate holding company
Advance from (repayment to)
fellow subsidiaries
Advance from an associate
Interest paid
Dividends paid
Proceeds from issue of shares

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash
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2008
—RENE
HK$’000
FTERT

(6,574)
(48,267)
(466)

41,785
8,250

7,814
398

171

3,111

6

741
805
4,332

345
719
)

(47,370)
4,029

(36,395)

62,874

335,197

510

398,581

2007
ZETLF
HK$'000
FET

5,417
(76,928)
(1,940)

9,908

(7,814)
1,687

10

(69,660)

981
2,881
16

368,220

308

335,197
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Its immediate holding company is CSA Holdings Ltd, a company
incorporated in Singapore and its ultimate holding company is
Computer Sciences Corporation, a public listed company in the
United States of America. The address of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information on the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services. The principal activities
of its associates and subsidiaries are set out in notes 17 and

33, respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following new standard, amendment to Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKAS”) and interpretations (“‘HK(IFRIC)-Int") (new
"HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (‘HKICPA”), which are effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning 1st April, 2007.

HE_TT/N\F=ZA=+—-HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

RARARRBREIMA LR —RKZHEER
RA ERNDEEEBERSAARLD A
(TEEZZFr]) BT EEEER D R AR E
WAL 2 CSA Holdings Ltd + RE&AERD
A AR EB AR £ 2 Computer Sciences
Corporation « KRAl 2 A MPFEE R FEEH
B2 AR ARERDAIER | NKE-

RARA—REELRAR REARERE
RS HEBEALHMBARZ T BEBZFHEB
PRI FE17 ]33 °

A B SRS ETLIIR BT AEA
Az EE-

RAFE - AEEAERERATHEES
Bog ([EEGMLE]) B2 HER
FEGHEN ([FEEGTEL]) 2B7] Rk
B (&% (BRYBHRSENREZRS) -
28 ([(FEEUBREER]) ERAE
B _ZT+FUA-BRB M BEELE
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZTT\F=A=T-BLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HK(FRIC) = Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach
under HKAS 29 Financial Reporting
in Hyperinflationary Economies

HK(FRIC) - Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(FRIC) - Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

HK(IFRIC) - Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

HK(FRIC) = Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

The adoption of the new HKFRSs has resulted in the following areas:

- The impact of application of HKFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures” has been to expand the
disclosures provided in the consolidated financial
statements regarding the Group’s financial instruments,
especially on the sensitivity analysis to market risk.

- The impact of application of HKAS 1 (Amendment) “Capital
Disclosures” has been to disclose information regarding its
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital.

The application of the remaining new HKFRSs has had no
material effect on how the results and financial position of the
Group for the current or prior accounting periods are prepared
and presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has
pbeen required.
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The Group has not early adopted the following new and revised
standard, amendment or interpretation that have been issued
but are not yet effective. The directors of the Company are in
the process of assessing the potential impact and so far
concluded that the application of these standards or
interpretations will have no material impact on the results and
financial position of the Group.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements!
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs'
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements?
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and
(Amendments) Obligations Arising on Liguidation’

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations'

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations?

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments!

HK(FRIC) = Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements®
HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes*
HK(FRIC) - Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined

Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their Interaction®

" Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009
S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2008
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2008

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting
for business combination for which the acquisition date is on or
after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning
on or after 1st July, 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the
accounting treatment for changes in a parent’'s ownership
interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control,
which will be accounted for as equity transactions. The directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of the other new
or revised standards and interpretations will have no material

impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-TT/N\F=A=+—BLFE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for leasehold land and buildings
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at
revalued amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The principal
accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31st March each year.
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of

disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
have been eliminated on consolidation.
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Interests in associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in

a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates
are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted
for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets
of the associate, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate, the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for
and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on

behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s

interest in the relevant associate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and service provided in the normal course of

business, less returns and allowances.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to
buyers (generally on delivery, satisfactory installation and
customer acceptance) and the amount of revenue and the costs

incurred for the transaction can be measured reliably.

Installation fees are recognised as revenue by reference to the
stage of completion of the installation, unless they are incidental
to the sale of a product, in which case they are recognised
when the goods are sold.

Maintenance service income is recognised on a straight line

basis over the term of the maintenance service contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZTT\F=A=T-BLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

Revenue recognition

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance from
computer equipment let under operating leases, is recognised in
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over

the terms of the relevant leases.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Interest income from a finance asset is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of

the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold land and
buildings, are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Leasehold land and buildings are stated in the balance sheet at
their revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying
amount does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the balance sheet date.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and
puildings is credited to the revaluation reserve, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same assets
previously recognised as an expense, in which case the
increase is credited to the consolidated income statement to the
extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease in net
carrying amount arising on revaluation of an asset is dealt with
as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any,
on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of
that asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
asset, the attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to

accumulated profits.
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation and amortisation are provided to write off the cost
or fair value of items of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in the consolidated income

statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately are
recognised at cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the consolidated income statement when the
asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-TT/N\F=A=+—BLFE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008

Intangible assets (Continued)

Research and development expenditure (Continued)

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated
that the development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project
will be recovered through future commercial activity. The
resultant asset is amortised on a straight line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products, commencing in the
year when the products are put into commercial production.
Development expenditure capitalised is carried at cost less
subsequent accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment loss.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the

period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible

assets acquired separately.

QOutsourcing contract costs

Costs on outsourcing contracts are generally expensed as
incurred. Certain incremental external costs or specific internal
costs that are directly related to contract acquisition or transition
activities which were incurred upon initiation of an outsourcing
contract are deferred and charged to expense over the life of
the contract. These costs include the cost of due diligence
activities after competitive selection, costs associated with
installation of systems and processes. Computer equipment
acquired in connection with outsourcing transactions are

capitalised in property, plant and equipment.
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Intangible assets (Continued)

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are stated at cost
less any identified impairment loss and are tested for impairment
annually by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised in the profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another accounting
standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as
revaluation decrease under that accounting standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in the profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another accounting
standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as
revaluation decrease under that accounting standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-TT/N\F=A=+—BLFE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
pbalance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset/liability and of allocating
interest income/expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts/payments (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset/liability, or, where

appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
following categories set out below. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in respect of
each category of financial assets are set out below:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including trade receivables, other
receivables, bank deposits, balances and cash) are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet
date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses. An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in
subsequent periods when an increase in the asset's recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have

been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale investments are measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until the
investments is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at
which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.
Any impairment losses on available-for-sale investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses on available-for-
sale equity investments will not reverse in profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

The Group's financial liabilities (including trade and bills

payables, and other payables and accruals) are subsequently

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’'s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had

been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Receipts in advance
Receipts in advance represent advance payments received for:

= delivery of goods which is recognised in profit or loss upon

the delivery of goods; and

- delivery of service which is recognised in profit or loss over the
service period stipulated in the respective customer contract.

Taxation
Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.
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Taxation (Continued)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from the profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years,
and it further excludes income statement items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the consolidated balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that

affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the profit or loss,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to

equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income, included rentals invoiced in advance from
computer equipment let under operating leases, is recognised in
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the terms of the relevant leases.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building
are considered separately for the purpose of lease classification,
leasehold land which title is not expected to pass to the lessee
by the end of the lease term is classified as an operating lease
unless the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, in which case, the entire lease
is classified as a finance lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised

in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
pbalance sheet date, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
as a separate component of equity (the translation reserve).
Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) and other defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are charged as an expenses when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement plans, the cost of providing
benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method,
with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet
date. Actuarial gains and losses which exceed 10 per cent. of
the greater of the present value of the Group’s retirement benefit
obligations and the fair value of plan assets are amortised over
the expected average remaining working lives of the participating

employees.

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that
the benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits vest.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet represents the present value of the defined
benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains/
losses and unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by
the fair value of plan assets. Any asset resulting from this
calculation is limited to unrecognised actuarial losses and past
service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and
reductions in future contributions to the plan.
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Share options granted to employees after 7th
November, 2002 and vested on or after 1st April,
2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period or
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding

increase in equity (share options reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The

impact of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period,

if any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share option reserve. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry dates, the amount previously recognised in share options

reserve will continue to be held in share options reserve.

Share options granted to employees on or before
7th November, 2002, or granted after 7th
November, 2002 and vested before 1st April, 2005
The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in
the consolidated financial statements until such time as the
options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in the
consolidated income statement in respect of the value of
options granted. Upon the exercise of the share options, the
resulting shares issued are recorded as additional share capital
at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the
exercise price per share over the nominal value of the shares is
recorded as share premium. Options which lapse or are
cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the

register of outstanding options.
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The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital,
reserves and accumulated profits as disclosed in note 26 and

consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
prepare the annual budget taking into account of the provision of
funding. Based on the proposed annual budget, the directors of
the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
management of the Group, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt, if necessary.

The Group'’s overall strategy remains unchanged from FYO7.

The Group's major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, trade receivables, other receivables, bank deposits and
cash balances, trade and bills payables and other payables. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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(a)

(b)
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Categories of financial instruments (a)
Financial assets EcRMEE
Available-for-sale investments AREERE
Loans and receivables (including ER&EWRZIE (BIEHREE R
cash and cash equivalents) BEEEY)
Financial liabilities cREE
Amortised cost SH R AN
Interest rate risk (b)

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as entities in the
Group and the Company have the effective interest on

bank deposits.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments including bank balances and pledged bank
deposit, at the balance sheet date and the stipulated
change taking place at the beginning of the financial year
and held constant throughout the reporting period in the
case of instruments that have floating rates. A 50 basis
point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management'’s assessment of the possible
change in interest rate.

HE_TT/N\F=ZA=+—-HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008

(b) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity (Continued)
If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s:

. profit for the year ended 31st March, 2008 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$ 1,993,000
(FYO7: increase/decrease by approximately
HK$1,716,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate

bank deposits and balances.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has increased
during the current year mainly due to the increase in

variable-rate bank deposits and balances.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in available-for-sale investments. The Group’s
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments operating in computer industry sector quoted
in Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. The Group has
disposed the available-for-sale investments during the year
and hence the management considers no material price
risk to the Group.

(c) Credit risk
As at 31st March 2008, the Group's maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet.
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(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at each
balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
relation to trade receivable, with exposure spread over a

number of counterparties and customers.

The credit risk for bank deposits and balances is
considered minimal as such amounts are placed with

panks with good credit ratings.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests
with the board of directors, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching
the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The
Group relies on operating cash flow as a significant source
of liquidity.
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(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining

contractual maturity for its financial liabilities:

2008
Trade payable
Other creditor

Total contractual undiscounted

cash flow

2007
Trade payable
Other creditor

Total contractual undiscounted
cash flow
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On demand or 91 to
within 90 days 180 days Total
BRERRA0A R 91Z180H Fob
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET FExT
180,695 1,363 182,058
- 41,336 41,336
180,695 42,699 223,394
180,695 42,699 223,394

On demand or 91 to
within 90 days 180 days Total
BRERKHKMR0A RN 91&180H it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET
175,869 9,483 185,352
- 41,038 41,038
175,869 50,521 226,390
175,869 50,521 226,390



(e) Fair value of financial instruments

(f)
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(e)
The fair value of available-for-sale investments with

standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid

markets are determined with reference to quoted market

bid prices and ask prices respectively.

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis using

prices from observable current market transactions.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate to their corresponding fair values.

Foreign currency risk ()
The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in US

dollars and Hong Kong dollars. Foreign exchange exposure

of the Group will continue to be minimal as long as the

policy of the Government of the Hong Kong Special

Administrative Region to link the Hong Kong dollars to the

US dollars remains in effect. There was no material

exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates, and therefore

no related hedging financial instrument was applied during

the year ended 31st March, 2008.

HE_TT/N\F=ZA=+—-HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

tRMIAZAFE
BEEBREERRGHRRERTE TS
BEEZAHEEREZATE HEE
Mz ERERLBEETE-

EREEREBBBEZATENRERE
RFRRERES T2 EERNTEER
XN (RAATERAMTERHER)
FEE-

EERRNGE B IMRDABHK AR
ARzeREEESRABEMNKREER
Higgz A FEEE-

S BE /= B
AEERBZWEREEZKATER
EXRAET-WMEEFINITHRREF —
HHREFBTEITHDBE AAREE
Pt A2 2 OB R B 7K ST S A 4 B
E_ZETNF=ZA=+—HIFEH
fi 0 8 28 K B 35 B /R B - UL I RS
AEEzE /I A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZTT\F=A=T-BLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

Turmnover represents the net amounts received and receivable for
goods sold by the Group to outside customers, less returns and
allowances, and revenue from service contracts, and is

analysed as follows:

Sales of goods HEEm
Revenue from service contracts RKEBRBE L ZBA

Over 90% of the Group's revenue is derived from the Hong
Kong market, its major geographical segment based on location
of customers. Although the Group sells computer products and
provides a wide range of services, in the opinion of the
directors, all the sales of goods and provision of services are
information technology (“IT") related and, in most of the time, are
negotiated under a single contract with a single customer.
Accordingly, the directors consider that the Group is engaged in
one single business segment, namely [T services.

Gain on disposal from available-for-sale AJ ffH &R E 2 HEFTE

investments (net of transaction costs ($0BR572,0008 L 2 X 5 A AN)

of HK$572,000)
Interest on bank deposits RITIF A B
RERESUWA

Equipment rental income

Dividend income from available-for-sale  AJ fit H & & & 7 iR 2 U A

investments
Exchange gain P 5 U 25
Miscellaneous Efth

Annual Report 2008 F $§

ERBENEASBERIAZFPMEBEER
(ERRERITH) RRERBEHOBEAZD
Wk W 2 R IR AT AT

2008 2007
Sl —ETLE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHT
888,487 846,628
504,906 428,351
1,393,393 1,274,979

AREBEBOOZBEIREEEM S KB
wWERASBDNREPHAEMS D HARAEE
HEEMER RRHEBZRIRE BES
R FHEZ —NEmMARRH 2R
HEAMRAR MERBLIBR THEE
—RPUE-—ANARNETHR - FAL - EF
RAREAEERE-HEBOH NEABRK
AR 75

2008 2007
—BEN\F —ETAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET TEL
20,690 =
8,250 9,908
2,015 3,419
398 2,683

48 193
1,188 391
32,589 16,594



The amount represents interest on bank borrowings wholly

repaid during the year.

Profit before taxation has been arrived
at after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (Note 10)
Other staff costs
Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefit scheme
contributions, net of forfeited
contributions of approximately
HK$105,000 (FYO7: HK$180,000)

Share-based payment expense

Total staff costs

Depreciation and amortisation:
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets (included in cost of

services rendered)

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
Auditor's remuneration:
Current year
Under(over) provision in respect of
prior year
Cost of inventories recognised
as an expense
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of intangible assets
Operating lease rentals in respect of:
Premises

Computer equipment

#

B o
o

B A A D HIBR 51 %R

EE=HE (HE10)

HAh 8 TR A

e REAMET
R RAE B ET B4 SR

2 U8 4 3% 49 105,000 7T
(ZEZLHBEFE 180,000 T)

A AERI N ZRAX

o

18 TR A

\

IrE R

ME- BB RRE
BVEAE (BEREHRRE ZKE)

RIZREE
% B AN BN 2

REE
BEFERETR GERE®)

FERARR AN

HEME BERREZEE

HERBTEEZER

KEHERS:

LES

BIR
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HE_TT/N\F=ZA=+—-HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

2008
—ERENE
HK$°000
FTERT

7,474

286,817

5,825
987

301,103

49,873

1,718

51,591

115

1,131

58

799,508

1,535
166

8,786
1,793

WTHARAFABRBEBZRITEEZR

2007
ZTETLF
HK$'000
FET

7,846

244,971

6,926
1,248

260,991

41,780

3,238

45,018

3,428

935

(4)

766,438

187
926

6,454
3,458

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
HBRASEEERLTF
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HE_TZN\F=A=+—BLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

Fees e

Other emoluments: Hib e -
Salaries and other benefits e kEHMEF
Performance related incentive bonus RE BBz RETEA
Retirement benefit scheme RRAE A EH B K

contributions

Share-based payment expense

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the thirteen (FYO7:

thirteen) directors were as follows:

Name of director

Lai Yam Ting

Lau Ming Chi, Edward

Allen Joseph Pathmarajah

Kuo Chi Yung, Peter

Moo Kwee Chong, Johnny

George Finlay Bell

Michael Shove

Darren John Collins

Wang Yung Chang,
Kenneth

Andrew John Anker

Cheung Man, Stephen

Hon Sheung Tin, Peter

Li King Hang, Richard

Annual Report 2008 F $§

Fees

EEpg ik

HK$°000

TER

BEE -

BsE -

Allen Joseph Pathmarajah 124

DEE 128

REE 80

George Finlay Bell 33

Michael Shove 17

Darren John Collins 50
Wang Yung Chang,

Kenneth 50
Andrew John Anker 50
& X 170
EiEA 140
R 188

1,030

Salaries
and other
benefits
HeR

Hig @R
HK$’000
THER

4,032

AR REM SN 2 B

2008

—eBNF
HK$°000

FTER

1,030

4,032
2,003

278
131

7,474

2007
—ERTLRF
HK$'000
TEL

956

3,728
1,417

1,348
397

7,846

RARENREN = (ZZ2Z2LPHF
B +=t)EEzMEmT:

Performance
related
incentive
payments
REEHZ
RETEA
HK$’000
THER

(Note)

CE)

1,520
483

2,003

2008

—BEN\E
Retirement
benefit
scheme
contributions
RBIER
BE ¥
HK$’000
THER

254

278

Share-
based
payment
expense
URGHER
XH2HEX
HK$’000
TER

131

Total
k]
HK$’000
THER

4,243
1,829
124
500
80

33

17

50

50
50
170
140
188

7,474



Name of director

Lai Yam Ting

Lau Ming Chi, Edward
Allen Joseph Pathmarajah
Kuo Chi Yung, Peter

Moo Kwee Chong, Johnny
Tan Suan Kheng, Esther
George Finlay Bell

Darren John Collins

Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth
Andrew John Anker
Cheung Man, Stephen
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter

Li King Hang, Richard

Note: The performance related incentive payments are determined as a

Fees

BEENY ik
HK$'000

FET

BEE =
gshE =
Allen Joseph Pathmarajah 130
PEE 104
BEE 80
B)II3 13
George Finlay Bell 50
Darren John Collins 50
Wang Yung Chang, Kenneth 50
Andrew John Anker 29
& X 164
Egjili 134
= 152

956

percentage of profit for the year of the Group.

During the year, no remuneration has been paid by the Group to
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group

and no directors have waived any remuneration.

| A BRAM T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-TT/\F-A=+—BIFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

2007
e 3

Performance Retirement Share-

Salaries related benefit based

and other incentive scheme payment

benefits payments  contributions expense
Fek  RBEWEZ RAERN RN AER Total
H 48 A BENTEA AR XNZRX B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTER TET FTER TET

(Note)
(&)

2,177 1,075 1,324 136 4,712
1,191 342 12 195 1,740
- - - - 130
360 - 12 66 542
- - - - 80
- - - - 13
= = = = 50
= = = = 50
= = = = 50
- - - - 29
- - - - 164
= = = = 134
- - - - 152
3,728 1,417 1,348 397 7,846

ok KRBz BMIEARAREFEEN 2 X
—EAHHHE-

REN RAEBTEREEENARNEEM
ZfzMe YRBEEREEMHE-

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
HBRASEEERLTF
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HE_TZN\F=A=+—BLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year
included two (FYO7: two) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 10 above. The remuneration of
the remaining three (FYO7: three) highest paid individuals for the

year are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits HeREMBEF
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  3& ¥R 48 | 51 21 £t 3%
Share-based payment expense LR BERE N AL

Their remuneration was within the following bands:

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T — 2,000,000% 7T
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7t — 3,000,000% 7T,
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 3,000,001/ T — 4,500,0007% 7T

Annual Report 2008 F $§

hEkeaHcRBREERME (ZTTLMR
FE-MB)EE REZWMEFBEERLX
MEI0RE- A= (2T LPBRFE:
ZR)FEEZREHEEZMEFHENT:

2008
—BRE2NF
HK$’000
FET
8,775

186

128

9,089

mEZHMENFTHNEER:

2007
—EELF
HK$'000
FHET
6,437

238

293

6,968

Number of employees

BEAR
2008
—2ENF

2007
—EELHF



The charge comprises:

Current taxation:
Hong Kong Profits Tax
Overseas taxation
Overprovision in prior years:
Hong Kong Profits Tax
Overseas taxation

Deferred taxation (Note 25)

Taxation attributable to the Company
and its subsidiaries

BEXHeRE:

BIEAR IR -
FRMNEHR
BINRIA

BEFRBREG:
FRMEH
BHNRIA

IR

A E) o E B A R e AL IR

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (FYO7: 17.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits derived from Hong Kong for the year.

Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in the

respective jurisdictions.

iR A B IS MR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_TT/N\F=ZA=+—-HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

2008

S L8
HK$°000
FH

12,640
1,407

(88)

13,959
(837)

13,122

2007
—ERTLRF
HK$'000
TEL

2,265
458

(300)
(300)

2,113
6,164

8,277

FEENBHERFRRNRESL 25 ERM
AR EIT 6% (T RFE

17.5%) 1EH B o

BINERFRAZFAER RS B OAPIEEZ

AN REHBE-

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
HBRASEEERLTF
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BE-ZTT\F=A=T-BLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows:

Profit before taxation

Tax at Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate of 17.5%
Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purpose
Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose
Tax effect of share of profit of associates
Overprovision in prior years
Effect of different tax rate applied to
gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments in other jurisdiction
Effect of different tax rate applied to
dividend income from
listed securities In other jurisdiction
Effect of different tax rates of
overseas operations
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised
Tax effect of utilisation of tax loss
not previously recognised
Others

Taxation charge for the year

Annual Report 2008 F $§

Bk 5% B 7
BREENSHBHE7.6%TE 25 IR
ERBIETANRIXHZBBEZE
ERBTETERR WA ZREZE
BoMeE N BnM o MBTE
BEFEBBEEMG
REMBEEREHEATHEEREZ

WHERATRARE 2 &

BRATRZEEREH LWES
BNz E

BBNZ2EMERNTRAREZEE

RERZRBERZRBZE
PRENAERZUBBRZIRBEE

HAh

FARAXH

AERRBX LA EEAH
ME R T

2008

—gENE
HK$’000

FER

89,275

15,623

860

(1,513)

(81)
(88)

(1,552)

599
77

(37)
(766)

13,122

2007
—ZEELEHF
HK$'000
FHET

61,837

10,821

241

(2,199)

(29)
(600)

67

264

(288)

8,277



Dividends recognised as distribution

during the year:
Interim of 4.0 HK cents

(FYO7: 3.0 HK cent) per share
Final in respect of

FYO7 of 6.0 HK cents

(FY06: 5.0 HK cents) per share
Special in respect of

FYO7 of 6.0 HK cents

(FY06: 6.0 HK cents) per share

Dividends proposed:
Final of 6.0 HK cents
(FYO7: 6.0 HK cents) per share

Special in respect of 11.0 HK cents

(FYO7: 6.0 HK cents) per share

iR A B IS MR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RERNERRDIRZIE

P EARR BB AR 4.0% (L
T LB REE 3.05M)

—ETHHREE 2 RERE
FR6.08 1L
(ZZZT A MHFE:5.0%51)

T LU RFEEZFRRE
6.0 1L
(ZZZ X MBFE :6.051)

R AR S
REARR B &A% 6.0%4 L
—TTLHRFEE 6.05)
BRI B FAR 1.0
(ZZZ LM BFE:6.051)

The final dividend for the year of 6.0 HK cents per share and the

special dividend for the year of 11.0 HK cents per share, totalling
HK$50,432,000 (FYO7: HK$35,300,000) have been proposed by
the directors and is subject to approval by the Company’s

shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

HE_TT/N\F=ZA=+—-HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

2008 2007
—EBENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
11,848 8,825
17,761 14,702
17,761 17,643
47,370 41,170
17,800 17,650
32,632 17,650
50,432 35,300

BEEEHRAERZRN FR6.058 1L 2 REKR S
E8R11.08IL 2558 B - & 50,432,000
B (ZE T EEE 35,300,000 7T) °

RERBFAREELR ZKRRRE

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED

HBRASEEERLTF



ARE B IS MR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_TZN\F=A=+—BLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is

based on the following data:

Earnings for the purpose of basic
earnings per share and
diluted earmnings per share

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose of
basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
shares — Share options

Weighted average number of

ordinary shares for the purpose of
diluted earnings per share

Annual Report 2008 F $§

R EESRERR
BEHRAN BN

ROt ESREARTZ
BB N4 T 19

TEREEEEYE - BRE

AR EESREERERNZ

BB N4 13 2

BRERNREERN IR TIBURTE:

2008 T
HK$’000 HKE'000
FEx FHT
76,153 53,560

Number of shares

Bth # B

2008 2007
—RBNE  —TTLA
’000 ‘000

i T
295,581 294,069
2,963 1,810
298,544 295,879



THE GROUP
COST OR VALUATION
At 1st April, 2006

Exchange realignment
Additions

Disposals

Revaluation adjustment

At 31st March, 2007

Comprising:
At cost
At valuation - 2007

Exchange realignment
Additions

Disposals

Revaluation adjustment

At 31st March, 2008
Comprising:

At cost
At valuation - 2008

N |
BASfEE
RZEERF
mA—H
EXBHAE
NE

HE
BEHE

R-ZZ+HF
=A=+-8H

B
A
HE-—ZT+E

ELEAE
NE

HE
Bt

R-ZBENE
=ZA=t+-H

BEE:
A
HE-Z2BN\F

Leasehold
land and
buildings
HELH

)3 2
HK$'000
FET

84,000

10,800

94,800

94,800

94,800

23,800

118,600

118,600

118,600

. iR A B IS MR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-TT/\F-A=+—BIFE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008

Data Computer

Furniture centre and office

and Motor equipment equipment
fixtures vehicles EHL R Total
BUREE RE BE  BAZERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET TET FHET FTEL
33,066 2,027 6,752 206,894 332,739
72 24 - 699 795
869 198 426 75,435 76,928
- (5) - (2,463 (2,468
- - - - 10,800
34,007 2,244 7,178 280,565 418,794
34,007 2,244 7,178 280,565 323,994
- - - - 94,800
34,007 2,244 7,178 280,565 418,794
644 24 - (244) 424
1,738 1,646 6,339 38,544 48,267
(138) (95) - (16,919) (17,148)
- - - - 23,800
36,251 3,819 13,517 301,950 474,137
36,251 3,819 13,517 301,950 355,637
- - - - 118,600
36,251 3,819 13,5617 301,950 474,137

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
HBRASEEERLTF
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HE_TZN\F=A=+—BLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

DEPRECIATION AND NEREH
AMORTISATION
At 1st April, 2006 RZEERF
mA—H
Exchange realignment BN EAE
Provided for the year FREE
Eliminated on disposals B B 4 85
Eliminated on revaluation REBEHE
At 31st March, 2007 RZZT+5E
=R=1+-8
Exchange realignment EXERE
Provided for the year FRERB
Eliminated on disposals R E R

Eliminated on revaluation B {4

At 31st March, 2008 R-BENE
ZB=t+-H

CARRYING VALUES REE

At 31st March, 2008 R-BENE
ZA=t-H

At 31st March, 2007 R-ZEE+HF
=A=+-~8
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Leasehold
land and
buildings
HELH

3 2
HK$'000
FET

2,036

@wé

2,356

(2,355)

118,600

94,800

Furniture
and
fixtures
BRREE
HK$'000
THET

30,177
49
1,231

31,457
5156
1,267
(116)

33,123

3,128

2,550

Motor
vehicles
RE
HK$'000
FET

1,014
24
74

(6]

2,007
24
294
(95)

2,230

1,589

237

Data
centre
equipment
BEHL
B
HK$'000
THT

3,359

696

4,055

867

4,912

8,605

3,123

Computer
and office
equipment
EK
BAERE
HK$'000
FET

145,258
624
37,743
(2,266)

181,359
(581)
45,100
(15,231)

210,647

91,303

99,206

Total
@t
HK$'000
TAET

180,708
697
41,780
(2,271)
2,036)

218,878
(42)
49,873
(15,442)
(2,355)

250,912

223,225

199,916



The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated

on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the remaining term of
the lease or 50 years,
whichever is shorter

Furniture and fixtures 10% — 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Data centre equipment 10%

Computer and office equipment 20% — 33'/%

The leasehold land and buildings were revalued by DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent professional
valuer, at 31st March, 2008 at market value basis which is
determined by reference to market evidence of recent
transactions for similar properties. The valuation conforms to
International Valuation Standards. The revaluation gave rise to a
net revaluation increase of HK$26,155,000 (FYO7:
HK$12,836,000) which has been credited to the property

revaluation reserve.

If the leasehold land and buildings had not been revalued, they
would have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and
amortisation, of approximately HK$69,603,000 (FYO7:
HK$72,003,000).

iR A B IS MR M EE
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HE_TT/N\F=ZA=+—-HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

Ltz BERREZHBE DRBESE
BTIFERFE:

HELH RET BB T2 HEOFHHK
A+ (AREE

R REE 10%— 20%
RE 20%

L 5 10%
ERRBAERME  20%—33%%

HETHREFHBY EEGEMI BRI
ERARRZZETZNF=ZA=+—HZ2ZEmM
S EREMERBT S 2 EARE RTERE
EHTEMN ZEEFEERGELEDZG
BEE S HIBEFEE26,1550008 7T (ZF
T KRFEE 12,836,000 7T) * W E A
MEEGEE-

HEETHREFREEMEH EFRELK
R 5978 R # 5 469,603,000 7T
(ZZEZT L KRFEE 72,003,000 L) 5T A
ZEGREMBERE-

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
HBRASEEERLTF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-TT/N\F=A=+—BLFE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008

Deferred Outsourcing

development contract
costs costs
EERE MHAERN
R S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
THE GROUP &
COST A
At 1st April, 2006 RZZEETR
mA—H 21,998 3,019
Exchange realignment ME 5 35 & = 139
Additions NE 1,487 453
Transfer [ e (4,497) -
Disposals RR== (995) (22)
At 31st March, 2007 RZTTLF
SAEF=E 17,993 3,589
Exchange realignment fEHBAE = 375
Additions NE 452 14
Disposals k= = (166)
At 31st March, 2008 R-BENF
=A=+-—H 18,445 3,812
AMORTISATION AND BN EE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1st April, 2006 RZZETRF
mMA—H 12,920 1,060
Exchange realignment fEHBAE - 72
Provided for the year FREE 2,423 815
Eliminated on disposals 6 B ET 8 (80) (11)
At 31st March, 2007 RZZTEELF
=RA=+—H 15,263 1,936
Exchange realignment fEHBAE = 102
Provided for the year FREE 1,313 405
Eliminated on disposals A 6 B ¥ 88 = =
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZBENF
=A=+-—H 16,576 2,443
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZBENF
=A=+-—H 1,869 1,369
At 31st March, 2007 RZZEZLF
=RA=+—H 2,730 1,653

Annual Report 2008 F $§

Patents
and
licences
HERER
HK$'000
FHET

7,800

7,800

7,800

7,800

Club
memberships

e
HK$'000
THEL

900

900

900

900

Total
et
HK$'000
FHET

33,717
139
1,940

(4,497)

(1,017)

30,282
375
466

(166)

30,957

21,780

72

3,238
(91)

24,999
102
1,718

26,819

4,138

5,283



The club memberships with indefinite useful life are stated at
cost less any identified impairment.

Other than club memberships, the above intangible assets have
definite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the following periods:

Deferred development costs 3 years

Outsourcing contract costs Over contract life, up to 3
years

Patents and licences 2 years

All of the Group’s patents and licences were acquired from third

parties.

Share of net assets EIEEESFE

Particulars of the Group’s unlisted associates at 31st March,

2008 are as follows:

Country/place
of incorporation

Name of associate = i B 2
BEATER ZER B
ASL Automated Services Thailand
(Thailand) Limited B
IN Systems (Macao) Limited Macau
R P

iR A B IS MR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_TT/N\F=ZA=+—-HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

EEREAFH I EMERRUANREIME
PRIREBEYIR-

Bemefl DAEPEENAERER
FH AW AERER T AR A #E:

i FE B9 B K AR 3%

SN & HI R A EHEH UASFERR
= R AR 2F

ERKEzENERBROEEE =5

2008 2007
—BENFE  —TTtE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT THT
705 242

RZZBBENF=ZA=+—-RB AEEZFL
ik AN o p

Percentage

of nominal value
of issued ordinary
share capital

held indirectly

by the Company

AREBERE
ERTEBRE Principal activities
ERBEHOL FEXK
49% Provision of engineering and
software services
RETERAMGRS
33.3% Provision of engineering and

software services

RETRERRERS

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
HBRASEEERLTF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-TT/N\F=A=+—BLFE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008

The summarised consolidated financial information in respect of
the Group’s associates is set out below:

Total assets BEE

Total liabilities RwEeE

Net assets FEE

Group’s share of net assets of associates A& B S EE & NG FEE
Total revenue LU

Total profit for the year RE E 18 7

Group’s share of results of associates AEBED(RBE AR ANFEEEE

for the year

Listed shares overseas, at market value &M F AR5 - IR THE

On 4th October, 2007, the Group disposed of its available-for-
sale investments to an outsider for a consideration of
approximately HK$42 million.

Annual Report 2008 F $§

MAREB 2 AR ZHEAMBENREHT

LU

2008
—gENE
HK$’000
FHRT

3,563
2,062

1,501
705
11,407
1,402

463

2008
—geNE
HK$’000
T

2007
—ZEELEHF
HK$'000
FHET

2,628
1,903

725
242
5,232
494

163

2007
ZETLF
HK$'000
FET

33,641

R-_ZETLFE+AMB AEBEUY
42,000,000 TREHEEAIHTEERE

FT-HEAEEAL



RIFBEZEY

/4

Goods pending customers’ acceptance BERFEEMZEY

Goods held for resale

Contracts in progress REMKE K

Goods held for resale and goods pending customers’ acceptance
mainly represent computer equipment and software products.
Contracts in progress mainly comprise costs of labour directly
engaged in project development and installation contracts.

The Group has granted credit to substantially all of its customers
for 30 days. An aged analysis of the trade receivables at the
balance sheet date, based on payment due date and net of
allowance of HK$4,183,000 (FYO7: HK$4,068,000), is as

iR A B IS MR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_TT/N\F=ZA=+—-HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

2008 2007
—EENF —ETAF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT TR
39,509 40,280
59,454 54,124
12,593 14,569
111,556 108,973

RIFEECENMREBRERPEMZEYEE
REMEBREMTER RTKEHNETERR
BERESRABERNMLEANZIBETRA

AEBECZHMEREFPEARNLELHZAI0AREE
H-EWRE ZREREE B ZREDITIRE
RNREE A RNk #EE 4,183,000 T (ZF
T B BRFE 4,068,000 L) 40T

follows:

0 - 1 month o0— 1A
1 - 2 months 1—2f@8 A
2 - 3 months 2—3f@A
Over 3 months 8 i@ 31E A

2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER TET
159,755 92,851
10,299 16,549
5,822 10,966
15,612 15,6563
191,488 135,919

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
HBRASEEERLTF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_TZN\F=A=+—BLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

The aged analysis of trade receivables that are past due and not

impaired are as follows:

Past due less than 90 days
Past due over 90 days

BH AR (E 2 BUE 55K RRER D

2008 2007

—EBENFE —ETLF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FiExT FET

8 2 90 H 41,758 59,196
# Hf B B o0 H 15,612 15,553
57,370 74,749

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related
to a wide range of customers that have a good payment record.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to
a number of independent customers that have a good trade
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that there has not been a significant change in credit

quality and the balances are still considered recoverable. The

S50 B LM 2 PG 55 KR8 R K ML A
RERBHES

BHERREZEEE ZHIES REE AR
SEERFEBERLEZBULEF -RE
BEEHR EEERR EREZLEERE
ERZEZERDRE R A ERE - ANEE AL E
MR EERFAERERR-

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RERE2EH
2008 2007
—EENF —EELHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Balance at beginning of the year FHE 4,068 640

Increase in allowance recognised RiBRIRER 2 B E M

in profit or loss 115 3,428
Balance at end of the year F IR 4,183 4,068
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Other debtors H h pE U AR
Deposits e
Prepayments T8 5 38

Amount due from immediate BEEERARXRK
holding company
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries B R M B A 7 K 3

Amount due from an associate e N FRER

Other debtors and the amounts due from immediate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries and an associate are unsecured,
interest free and are repayable on demand.

As at 31st March, 2008, short term bank deposits comprise
deposits held by the Group with an original maturity not less
than three months and include bank deposits of approximately
HK$100,000 (FYO7: HK$100,000) that have been pledged to
secure certain short term banking facilities of the Group. Other
bank balances comprise deposits held by the Group with an
original maturity of three months or less.

Bank balances and short term bank deposits carry interest at
market rates with average interest rate of 0.9% and 2.72% per
annum, respectively.

iR A B IS MR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_TT/N\F=ZA=+—-HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
12,599 6,010
2,974 2,762
38,716 47,012

= 6

10,866 4,292
a7 789
65,202 60,871

Hip RUSR EEIERAR RRMER
BRRRRE EEA %5&4\&;{3:1@1%

A

B
b MH

\EEH:-I—*EI'%EH%E”??%
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ AT IOR=ZEAZ
?é?%%ﬁzimooooo,%m(_zgt
+—H:100,000% 7T ) E A {E# 1§
JFLHME TRRE ZRITIE R HAt
PREASERBERIGAA=E
Z@TJ\"

léi
T m

i B o

mE OB @

a3y a1 3‘#5%‘\\
N
ﬂ%ﬂﬁ [

BTG REHRTERETSAN RS
T FEF KSR R0.9%K2.72% ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_TZN\F=A=+—BLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the BNESREBEREENEE BREMS A
balance sheet date, based on payment due date, is as follows: HBEZERERDWWT:
2008 2007
—E2ENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T FET
0 - 1 month 0—11@A 159,496 167,344
1 — 2 months 1—21@A 5,464 5,942
2 — 3 months 2—3f@A 5,862 2,771
Over 3 months 8 1@ 31E A 11,236 19,295
182,058 185,352
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE FET
Other creditors H b fE S BRIA 10,562 16,465
Accruals EEtE Fﬁ 34,584 24,772
Amount due to ultimate holding company ﬁ(ﬁ*iﬂ A)FIE 8,139 7,334
Amount due to immediate REBZRARHIE
holding company 5,165 833
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries VG EY NG @ 16,751 16,406
Amount due to an associate 8 ENCIE = 719 =
75,920 65,810
The amounts due to ultimate holding company, immediate REEERAR BEEERAR RERBA
holding company, fellow subsidiaries and an associate are AIRBERNRCREBEAREER 2O RAR

unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand. ZRER-
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The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised by
the Group and movements thereon during the current and

preceding year:

iR A B IS MR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_TT/N\F=ZA=+—-HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

NTHAEECER 2 EZREHRIEARE
AMERFRZES:

Accelerated Revaluation

tax of
depreciation properties Total
MEHIERE Y E R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FA&ET
At 1st April, 2006 RZTEENFMA—H 10,211 781 10,992
Charge to consolidated income statement R 4R & 1825 BR A X 84 6,164 = 6,164
Charge to equity B RA+ Bk - 2,246 2,246
At 31st March, 2007 RZZZ+EF=A=+—H 16,375 3,027 19,402
Credit to consolidated income statement R 4R & B 25 BR A X 84 (837) = (837)
Charge to equity B RA+ Bk - 4,577 4,577
At 31st March, 2008 R-ZEENF=A=+—H 15,538 7,604 23,142
Number of shares Amount
R EE -]
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENFE —ZTTtF ZEBEENF ZZTTLHF
’000 ‘000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T & T FERT FAT
Ordinary shares of FREE00E T2
HK$0.10 each LR
Authorised: ETERA
At 1st April and 31st March RUA—B R
=A=+—8H 600,000 600,000 60,000 60,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTREE:
At 1st April KM A—H 294,170 293,792 29,417 29,379
Exercise of share options 1718 BB R 42 2,487 378 249 38
At 31st March R=A=+—H 296,657 294,170 29,666 29,417

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
HBRASEEERLTF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZTT\F=A=T-BLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

During the year, the Company issued 2,487,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each at the subscription prices ranging from HK$0.9
to HK$2.4 per share (FYOQ7: 378,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each at the subscription prices ranging from HK$1.28 to
HK$1.34 per share) under the share options scheme of the

Company.

The new shares rank pari passu with the then existing shares in

issue in all respects.

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
16th October, 1997 for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to any employee and/or director of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to any individual under the
Scheme shall not exceed 25% of the aggregate number of shares
for the time being issued and issuable under the Scheme.
Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of
offer, upon payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company,
and will not be less than the higher of 80% of the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
options, and the nominal value of the shares.

Pursuant to the amendments to Chapter 17 of the Rules
Goveming the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
which became effective from 1st September, 2001, any options
granted after 1st September, 2001 must comply with the
provisions of the revised Chapter 17. In order for the Company
to be able to grant options to its director and/or other eligible
participants after 1st September, 2001, the Scheme was
terminated and a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed in the general
meeting held on 8th August, 2002. As a result, the Company
can no longer grant any further share option under the Scheme.
However, all share options granted prior to 1st September,
2001 will remain in full force and effect.
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Under the New Scheme, the directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible employees, including directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the
Company. The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the New Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time. The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual in any one year is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time. Options granted must be taken up within 28
days of the date of offer, upon payment of HK$1 as
consideration per grant. There is no general requirement that an
option must be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised but the directors of the Company is empowered to
impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time of
grant of any particular option. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the directors of the
Company at its absolute discretion, save that no option may be
exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company,
and will not be less than the higher of (a) the closing price of the
shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the
average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the options; and (c) the nominal value of the
shares. The New Scheme will expire on 7th August, 2012,

At 31st March, 2008, the aggregate number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted under the Scheme
and the New Scheme was 17,736,000 (FYO7: 17,511,000),
representing 6.0% (FYO7: 6.0%) of the shares of the Company
in issue at that date.

iR A B IS MR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_TT/N\F=ZA=+—-HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

REFFE ARFEZAREERER (8
BARAREWMBARZES) RHBRE
ANREARBMD - BIEBHFAITRE 2B
BRETRBBEBZROAE TEBBRATRN
EAIREE 2 E 81T 210% - WMEAFER
TEAALZBREARBZROEH T
SEBARAMNMEMER 2B HTRMNZ
1% ° BER B LANRH A B8R
NEH BHSEREREAIMIBTEAR
B-AHTE-—BRRAEERLERERE AT
EHBRERN L ATEBREZ EAXES
R-ERARETERERBEHERNTTE
PR BB I E A RERR R ITEBR
BZHRBEBARAEZTLRNBETE &
EABRE - R TERE L B YR 10F6
BITE-TEREDHARNELEE HEHT
ELORUT=ZFR 28D E  (@QBRORER
R A B S P 2 W B ¢ (o)A 0 1R BB X
BEE RS AR S B ER XMz FIaR
ME: RC)RMEE- AR T ——F
NAEHEW®-

RZZEENF=ZA=+—8 REZTER
ET &I %L 2 BIREEE B 17,736,000
B(ZETLHBFEE:17,511,0000%) - H%E
RARARRNEBBITERN Z6.0% (=TT
+ AR FE :6.0%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_TTZNF=ZA=+—-HLLFE

For the year ended 31st

March, 2008

The following table discloses details of the share options held by

employees (including directors) under the Scheme and the New

Scheme and movements in such holdings during the current

and preceding years:

Date of grant

R A

2008
=t 2 %

Scheme
Zird

2.3.1999
19.10.1999
11.2.2000
30.6.2000
27.7.2001

Exercisable at the
end of the year
ARFELRTR

Weighted average
exercise price

MEFHTRE

New Scheme

#itél

20.11.2002
6.8.2004
9.6.2005
19.6.2006
30.6.2006
30.6.2006
4.10.2007

Exercisable at the
end of the year
ARFLRITER

Weighted average
exercise price

MEFHTRE

Balance

at

1.4.2007
R-BELF
A—8
2B

740,000
1,980,000
65,000
40,000
2,194,000

5,019,000

2,144,000
2,224,000
2,808,000
2,888,000
1,272,000
1,156,000

12,492,000

1.73
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Granted
during
the year

RERRH

2,888,000

2,888,000

ROBBRERFABTZRE
Exercised Lapsed Cancelled
during during during
the year the year the year
RERTHE RERAR REREH
(80,000) - -
(115,000) (10,000) =
- (10,000) -
(108,000) (10,000) =
(308,000) (30,000) -
1.97 3.02 -
(522,000) (24,000) -
(772,000) (16,000) -
(336,000) (28,000) -
(120,000) = =
(190,000) (10,000) -
(244,000) (68,000) -
(2,184,000) (146,000) -
1.67 1.78 -

TEBERE (BREF) MEANBEREE
AEEHRFFEARBZTE MG ZE

DEIEE

Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

Balance

at

31.3.2008
R-BENE
SA=+-R
ZH¥

660,000
1,855,000
56,000
40,000
2,076,000

4,686,000

4,686,000

217

1,598,000
1,436,000
2,444,000
2,768,000
1,072,000

844,000
2,888,000

13,050,000

6,570,000

Exercise period

TEAR

3.3.2001 toZ 2.3.2009
20.10.2001 toZ 19.10.2009
12.2.2002 toE 11.2.2010
1.7.2002 toZ 30.6.2010
27.7.2003 toF 26.7.2011

20.11.2008 toZ 19.11.2012
6.8.2005 toE 5.8.2014
9.6.2006 toZ 8.6.2015

19.6.2007 toZ 18.6.2016
30.6.2006 toZ 29.6.2016
30.6.2007 toZE 29.6.2016
4.10.2008 toZ 3.10.2017

Exercise
price
per share

BRITEE

HK$
BT

0.90
2.30
3.35
3.40
2.40

1.34
1.28
1.98
1.95
1.95
1.95
2.32



27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued

27. BRERTE

Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

RORBRESHETZIRE

| o & B 15 3 5% Y o
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-2TN\F=A=+-BLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

Balance Balance
at at
1.4.2006 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 31.3.2007 Exercise
RZZZRF during during during during RZZZ+EF price
Date of grant mA—A the year the year the year the year ZA=+—H Exercise period per share
RHAH 25 REARE REATE RENER RENEH ZHE ARER BRITEE
HK$
BT
2007
“ETtF
Scheme
ZitE
2.3.1999 740,000 - - - - 740,000 3.3.2001 toZF 2.3.2009 0.90
19.10.1999 2,060,000 - - (70,000) - 1,980,000 20.10.2001 toZ 19.10.2009 2.30
11.2.2000 2,075,000 - - (35,0000  (1,975,000) 65,000 12.2.2002 toZE 11.2.2010 3.35
30.6.2000 590,000 - - (20,000) (530,000) 40,000 1.7.2002 toZ 30.6.2010 3.40
27.7.2001 2,268,000 - - (74,000) - 2,194,000 27.7.2003 toE 26.7.2011 2.40
7,723,000 - - (199,000)  (2,505,000) 5,019,000
Exercisable at the
end of the year
AR E TR 5,019,000
Weighted average
exercise price
MELHTEE 2.56 - - 2.63 3.36 2.16
New Scheme
#ardl
20.11.2002 2,374,000 - (206,000) (24,000) - 2,144,000 20.11.2003 t0Z 19.11.2012 1.34
6.8.2004 2,464,000 - (172,000) (68,000) - 2,224,000 6.8.2005 t0Z 5.8.2014 1.28
9.6.2005 2,888,000 - - (80,000) - 2,808,000 9.6.2006 toZ 8.6.2015 1.98
19.6.2006 - 2,888,000 - - - 2,888,000 19.6.2007 toZ 18.6.2016 1.95
30.6.2006 - 1,300,000 - (28,000) - 1,272,000 30.6.2006 toZ 29.6.2016 1.95
30.6.2006 - 1,204,000 - (48,000) - 1,156,000 30.6.2007 toZ 29.6.2016 1.95
7,726,000 5,392,000 (378,000) (248,000) - 12,492,000
Exercisable at the
end of the year
RERITE 5,652,000
Weighted average
exercise price
NEFHTEE 1.56 1.95 1.81 1.72 - 1.78

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE-TT/N\F=A=+—BLFE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008

For options granted under the New Scheme, other than the
1,272,000 options granted on 30th June, 2006, which are
vested immediately, the rests are vested equally over 3 years
from the date of grant.

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the
weighted average share price at the date of exercise is HK$2.28
(FYO7: HK$1.92 per share). The weighted average closing price
immediately before the date of exercise is HK$2.28 (FYO7:
HKS$1.92 per share).

In respect of the share options granted on 4th October, 2007
(FYO7: 19th June, 2006 and 30th June, 2006), the estimated
fair values of the options on the dates of grant were calculated
using the Black-Scholes model. The estimated fair values were
ranging form HK$0.41 to HK$0.476 (FYO7: from HK$0.31 to
HK$0.53 per share). The inputs into the model were as follows:

Welghted average share price hnE R E
Exercise price T1E(E
Expected volatility T8 B 18
Expected life TEET & H
Risk-free rate 1 3 B L 3
Expected dividend yield T8 HA [B] ¥ %

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company for the weekly closing share price for
the period of 52 weeks before the date of grant.

During the year, the Group recognised total expense of
HK$1,118,000 (FYO7: HK$1,645,000) in relation to equity-
settled share-based payment transactions.

Total consideration received during the year from employees for

taking up the shares under the options amounted to HK$28
(FYO7: HK$107).
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Defined contribution plans:

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees.
The MPF Scheme is established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance in December 2000. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to consolidated income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group’s
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

Defined benefit plan:

The Group also operates a defined benefit plan for a qualifying
director of the Company. Under the plan, the director is entitled
to retirement benefits based on 120% or 175.25% of final
average salary multiplied by completed months of service on
attainment of a retirement age of 60, or of age at least 50 with
25 years of services. The assets of the fund are held separately
from those of the Company, in funds under the control of
trustees. The scheme is non-contributory on the part of the
director and the Company is obliged to meet the full cost of all

benefits due to the director under the plan.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_TT/N\F=ZA=+—-HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZTT\F=A=T-BLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

Defined benefit plan: (Continued)

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at 31st March,
2008 were carried by BMI Appraisals Limited, independent
actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, the
related current service cost and past service cost were
measured using the projected unit credit method. The main

actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Discount rate rm=
Expected return on plan assets TEHIRT B B Em 3R
Expected rate of salary increases T8 A % & 15 18

Expected return rate on plan assets is determined by reference
to historical data of Hang Seng Index.

The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan
assets was HK$11,760,000 (FYO7: HK$7,216,000) and the
present value of the funded obligations was HK$11,659,000
(FYO7: HK$6,019,000).

Amounts recognised in consolidated income statement during
the year in respect of the defined benefit plan are as follows:

Current service costs R RF AR 75 X AR

Interest cost B A

Expected return on plan assets T8 HA 5+ &1 & E B 3
Transitional liability recognised ERERBEMEAE

Net actuarial gain recognised in the year ANEMER 7 F B E W
Administrative cost TTH KA

The charge for the year of HK$1,076,000 (FYO7: HK$1,038,000)
has been included in administrative expenses.
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RERAME: (5)

B EEM T NBRFE AR AR /ARG E
ZEENER-_ZZENF=ZR=+—HZR
ERMEFEZREETERN —H2BE-R
ERME T B RRE RS KA FOBE R
AR ZIRETERBEA ELEREFTE P

FRZEEZBERZNOT:
2008 2007
—EZTN\F —ETLF
2.7% 4.2%
7.0% 7.0%
5.2% 3.3%

EHFAEECEBEDE2EEEERRZ
JEE S 8RR E ©

BEHRERBRT HEEEZTEAR
11,760,0008 T (ZZE T LMK F & :
7,216,000 ) MEESEETZ2HER
11,669,000 T (ZZEE LM B F ¥ :
6,019,000/ L) °

RAFERATEFNTERRRGE BRI
ZEBMAT:

2008 2007
—BEN\FE —ETALF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&ET

422 420

313 258

(505) (300)

928 928

(84) (270)

2 2

1,076 1,038

KREEZ 2K AE1,076,0008 7T (ZEZT L8
R 1,038,000/ L) W EFATHER-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_TT/N\F=ZA=+—-HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

REEAGE: (8)
BB EZERRO®RA4,105,0008 T (=2
T BREE 581,000 7T) °

Defined benefit plan: (Continued)
The actual return on plan assets was HK$4,105,000 (FY07:
HK$581,000).

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Group's ARBHARTERNFE ZEMEELEMT

obligation in respect of its defined benefit plan is as follows:

Aﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁZiﬁ,\ﬁDT:

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Present value of funded obligations ESBEMEZHE 11,659 6,019
Fair value of plan assets EIEECZATEE (11,760) (7,216)
Surplus g (101) (1,197)
Net actuarial gains not recognised MR ERZFBE W 1,606 2,691
Net liability arising from defined AERMEAEEZ
benefit obligation BEFE 1,505 1,494
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit AEERERAMEEC2REZSH U T:
obligations in the current year were as follows:
2008 2007
—EENE —TTEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
At 1st April R A—H 6,019 5,653
Current service costs I AR 78 K AR 422 420
Interest cost Bk AR 313 258
Actuarial gains BE W= 4,905 (212)
At 31st March R=B=+—8H 11,659 6,019

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
HBRASEEERLTF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_TZN\F=A=+—BLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current

year were as follows:

At 1st April

Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial gains

Contributions from the employer

At 31st March

The Group as lessee:

KA —H
HEHHEEERR
BE W
1B £ # K

R=A=+—H

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases in respect of certain of its office premises and computer

equipment which fall due as follows:

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

—FR

EEZERF (BERERMEF)

LLeases for office premises are negotiated for an average term of

two years and rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases.

Leases for computer equipment are negotiated for an average term

of one year and rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases.
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REEFEABEZATFEEZSHNOT:

2008
—EENF
HK$°000
FER
7,216

505

3,600

439

11,760

FEBEREBEA:

2007
—ZEELEHF
HK$'000
FHET

5,316
300
281

1,319

7,216

REER RNEBRBETIAIHREEEXHENA

RT5I B #X B B2 9

BEREMR

BZARKREEHNSEAENT

2008
—gENE
HK$’000
FHT

9,345
6,018

15,363

2007
—ZEELEHF
HK$'000
FHET

6,921
2,660

9,681

MAEREZENTFH_FHI R H2
A

BERBEL 2 ko

EMRE2ENFE-—FER X EHE2E

ERBHZ £



The Group as lessor:

At 31st March, 2008, the Group had contracted with a tenant
for future minimum lease payments of approximately
HK$4,893,000 (FYO7: HK$3,419,000) in respect of certain
computer equipment under operating leases which fall due
within one year.

The lease is contracted for one year and rentals are fixed over
the term of the lease.

At 31st March, 2008, the Group has provided counter
indemnities to banks for performance guarantees issued by the
banks to the Group’s customers in respect of the Group’s
service performance to these customers amounting to
HK$26,942,000 (FYO7: HK$20,350,000).

The Group's bank deposits of approximately HK$100,000
(FYO7: HK$100,000) has been pledged to secure the banking
facilities of the Group. At 31st March, 2008, no bank facilities
were being utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_TT/N\F=ZA=+—-HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

rEBHEAEBEA:
RZZEENFZA=-+—A A£ERAF
HETEMREITUR —FREBHZEER
AR KIEEE X 4 /4,893,000% 7T (=
LB EE :3,419,000) °

ERENAS —F HeBAERBEOZ £-

RZZEENFZA=+—8 FAEERRT
MAEBEPF#EZBHOER ARTREME
A 826,942,000 T (Z T FHBFE:
20,350,000 70) 2 R¥EMR - R1TEH 2 &
RIDBFAREBHRTS ZRIEET-

i

REBAEH100,0008TT (Z T BF
£ :100,0008 ) 2 RITFREREAER
ROMEZEF-R_TTENF=ZA=+—
B ORERITMERSA-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZTT\F=A=T-BLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

(1) Transactions with fellow subsidiaries, immediate holding

company and ultimate holding company:

Nature of transaction

RENEE

Fellow subsidiaries:

Sales by the Group

Purchases by the Group

Staff costs charged by the Group

Administrative expenses charged
to the Group

Immediate holding company:

Expenses charged to the Group

Ultimate holding company:

Purchases by the Group

Sub-contracting costs charged
by the Group

Administrative expenses charged
to the Group

IEES oy PN

AEEKE

rEREBE

AEEBKRZETIHX

AEEXNZTBAX

BHEERARA]

AEBEXNZHAX

B2

\\-«

SN

|

AEHEBE
AEBEUBRzNOBEER

AEBXNZTHAEX

(2) A contribution of HK$439,000 (FYO7: HK$1,319,000) was
made by the Group in respect of a defined benefit plan for

a director of the Company (note 28).

(3)  The Group’s balances with related parties are set out in

notes 21 and 24.

(4)  Key management compensation is disclosed in notes 10

and 11.
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FHT

4,013
1,016
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547
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—EELEHF
HK$'000
FHET
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2,384
1,673
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Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31st March, 2008

are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEARAHE

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
BRZG (FE)BERAA

ELM Computer Technologies Limited
BHERBRERAF

CSA Automated (Macau) Limited
EEES S 1o0R-1:9

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation

BMEY/ RIK

BEAR /MY

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
e

Macau

R

Nominal

value of issued
and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital
BBAR
BERER/ZREXR

HK$2
Ordinary shares

ETLERM

HK$55,350,000
*Non-voting
deferred shares
*55,350,0007% 7T
FRERR

HK$12,000,000
Ordinary shares
12,000,000% 7T

LER

MOP10,000
Ordinary shares
&%10,0001T
L

iR A B IS MR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-ZTNF=ZA=1+—-HLFE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008

R_FBENF=ZA=+—H0 ARABZHE

ARFHBHT:

Percentage of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held directly

by the Company
ERAEGRT
REAEREHL

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

TEER

Investment holding, sales of

computer products and solutions

and provision of hardware services
(including installation and maintenance
services) and software services
(including software development,
consulting and professional services)

REAR HEIMERRBRIRER

REBHRE (BRZER
RERSB) REM RS
(BREEARE BERREXRE)

Sales of computer products and solutions

and provision of hardware services
(including installation and maintenance
services) and software services
(including software development,
consulting and professional services)
HEERERRBRARR

REUEHRE (RERE
RERB) RBHRE

(BRENRE BRREXRE)

Sales of computer products and solutions

and provision of hardware services
(including installation and maintenance
services) and software services
(including software development,
consulting and professional services)
HEBHERRBRAARR
REBMRE (BERER
RERY) REMHRHE
(BREHRE BRREZRE)

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED

HBRASEEERLTF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZTT\F=A=T-BLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited

Guangzhou Automated Systems
Limited
EMREXEREERKERAA

Taiwan Automated Systems Limited

REREXEEMMNBARAA

Annual Report 2008 F $§

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation

BMEL/RILK
ReEER/ Y

Thailand
RE

People's Republic
of China
REARLRNE

Republic of China
PERR

Nominal

value of issued
and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital
BEAR
BERK/ZMEXR

BHT50,000,000
Ordinary shares

% 50,000,000
LEk

HK$10,000,000
(Note 1)
10,000,000 7T
(Bt zE1)

NTD42,000,000
(Note 2)

#1 & 42,000,000
(B &E2)

Percentage of

nominal value of

issued share capital

held directly

by the Company
KD ELRT Principal activities
RAEZEAL TEEH

100%  Sales of computer products and solutions
and provision of hardware services
(including installation and maintenance
services) and software services
(including software development,
consulting and professional services)
HEBREMRBATER
REBHRE (RELER
RERS) REMHRH
(BEEMNRE BRREZRE)

100%  Sales of computer products and solutions
and provision of hardware services

(including installation and maintenance

services) and software services

(including software development,

consulting and professional services)
HEBRERRBATRER

REUBHERS (ARZER
RERS) REM R

(BREENRE BRREXRHB)

100%  Sales of computer products and solutions
and provision of hardware services
(including installation and maintenance
services) and software services
(including software development,
consulting and professional services)
HEBHEMRBATRR
REUBHRE (BRERE
RERS) REMHRH
(BREMHRE BERREXRSE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_TT/N\F=ZA=+—-HLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment

and operation

Nominal

value of issued
and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital

Name of subsidiary WKL/ BIR RN
WELARERE BeER /WY HERE/HBEX
Express Success Limited British Virgin islands” US$2
Y Tohed M Ordinary shares

XeonLBR

Express Returns Limited British Virgin \s\ands# US$2
Y Tohed M Ordinary shares

XeonLBR

Express Profits Development Limited British Virgin \s\ands# US$2
EBRaHE Ordinary shares

Eeon BBk

Percentage of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held directly

by the Company
ANREGRT
BREEZERL

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

TEXH
Property holding

NERE

Property holding
NERE

Property holding
NERE

Note:

The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Company,
carry practically no rights to dividends nor to receive notice of nor to
attend or vote at any general meeting of the company nor to participate
in any distribution on winding up.

These companies operate in Hong Kong.

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited was registered in the People’s
Republic of China as a wholly foreign owned enterprise and had a
registered capital of HK$10,000,000. The amount of HK$10,000,000
disclosed above represents the amount of registered capital paid up to
31st March, 2008.

During the year, Taiwan Automated Systems Limited was established
and registered in the Republic of China and has a registered capital of
NTD42,000,000. The amount of NTD42,000,000 disclosed above
represents the amount of registered capital paid up to 31st March,
2008.

BRERELER (MEBARRAFEE) L&
P 7 4 ) M BB B SR IR A 2 RME AT R K
BREIHERRAGINEG LREHZ
BIEREF 2 Ef DK

B 5E

BMNREXEEEMEBRABIRPEA
REMBEMAIEBEECE EEMELRE
10,000,000 7T » = X # #& 2 © ¥ 10,000,000
BLABE_ZTN\E=ZA=+—HBZEH
EMEREEE-

RAFEE aEREXEEARHEERA AN
FPERBEXKZERAM HEMEREBHAKE
42,000,000t E X B2 BH A
#42,000,000C BB E_SEENE=ZA=+
—RAZEBEHEMERSE-

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

N

= o
=

RAFEHEER BENBRRETEME
s

AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED

HBRASEEERLTF



AHRGEEERAF —FTEWE KiEE A A
Automated Systems Holdings Limited
Major Subsidiaries and Associates

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited

15/F Topsall Plaza

No. 11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998 Fax: (852) 2601 6936

ELM Computer Technologies Limited

11/F Topsail Plaza

No. 11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2541 9900 Fax: (852) 2541 1338

CSA Automated (Macau) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D' Assumpcao No. 180
Edf. Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo

14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392 Fax: (853) 2878 6390

In Systems (Macao) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D' Assumpcao No. 180
Edf. Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo

14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392 Fax: (8563) 2878 6390

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited

Rm 2001-3, 20/F, Block 4, Dong Jun Plaza
836 Dong Feng Road East, Guangzhou, China
Tel: (8620) 8760 5518 Fax: (8620) 8767 5383

ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited

283/42 Home Place Office Building,

Unit 0901, 9th Floor, Soi Sukhumvit 55
(Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road,

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana,

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206 Fax: (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building,

Unit 0902, 9th Floor, Soi Sukhumvit 55
(Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road,

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana,

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206 Fax: (662) 185 3207

Taiwan Automated Systems Limited

3F, No. 18, Sec. 6, Ming-Chuen East Road
Nei-Hu Dist. 114, Taipei, Taiwan, R. O. C.

Tel: (886) 2 8792 8598 Fax: (886) 2 8792 8569
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In Systems (Macao) Limited
SBPYR T 4 E 18057

WA GEmER L 141EO-RE

E 5% 1 (853) 2878 6392 {#H : (853) 2878 6390

EMNREXEEENEARAR
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S PUEE20# 2001-3F
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ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building,
Unit 0901, 9th Floor, Soi Sukhumvit 55
(Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road,
Klongtan Nua, Vadhana,
Bangkok 10110, Thailand
% :(662) 185 3206 {#H : (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building,

Unit 0902, 9th Floor, Soi Sukhumvit 55
(Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road,

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana,

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

% 3% 1 (662) 185 3206 {#H :(662) 185 3207
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited

BHENZHEB B R QA

15/F., Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, H.K.
Tel: (852) 2601 6998 Fax: (852) 2601 6936
Home Page: http://www.asl.com.hk
BEVHAZLE11REIRRES1518

EE5E: (852) 2601 6998  {HHE: (852) 2601 6936
#4311t http://www.asl.com.hk
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